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NOTICE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Forty Third Annual General Meeting of the Members of Chandi
Steel Industries Limited will be held through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means
(“OAVM”), on Thursday, 30" September, 2021 at 1:00 p.m to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

Item No. 1
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended
31% March, 2021 together with the Report of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

Item No. 2
To appoint a Director in place of Shri Susanta Sarkar (holding DIN — 06449312), who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Item No. 3
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), a consolidated
remuneration of Rs. 20,000/- (excluding applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of pocket expenses, if
any) as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held
on 10™ August, 2021 to be paid to M/s Mondal & Associates, Proprietor Mr. Amiya Mondal, being the Cost
Auditors of the Company, having office at 45, Akhil Mistry Lane, Kolkata — 700 009 for conducting the
audit of the cost records of the Company and providing Cost Audit Report and all such reports, annexures,
records, documents etc., for the financial year 2021-22, that may be required to be prepared and submitted
by the Cost Auditors under applicable statute, be and is hereby confirmed.”

Item No. 4

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an
ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and all other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and
Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to such other
approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions of any authorities as may be necessary, the consent of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which
term shall include any Committee thercof constituted by the Board to exercise its powers, including the
powers conferred by this Resolution) to enter into contracts, arrangements, transactions including material
transactions with its related parties, in any financial year on such terms and conditions as may be mutually
agreed upon between the Company and its related parties, as per details given below:
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Name of the Nature of Relationship Nature of Contract Estimated
Related Party amount per
annum (Amount
in Crore)
Jai Balaji | JBIL is a Public Company in | Purchase/ Sale of 50
Industries which Director along with its | goods/materials on an arm’s
Limited (JBIL) | Relatives holds more than | length basis and in ordinary
2% of its paid-up share | Course of business, Corporate
capital Guarantee given/obtained
Jai Salasar | JSBIPL is a Private Company | Purchase/Sale of 120
Balaji Industries | having common | goods/materials on an arm’s
Pvt. Ltd. | Directorship/Membership length basis and in ordinary
(JSBIPL) Course of business
Balaji Ispat | BIU is a Proprietorship Firm | Purchase/Sale of 10
Udyog (BIU) in which Director’s brother is | goods/materials on an arm’s

Proprietor length basis and in ordinary

Course of business

Jai Balaji Jyoti | JBISL is a Public Company | Purchase/Sale of 50

Steels Limited | in which Director along with | goods/materials on an arm’s
(JBJSL) its Relatives holds more than | length basis and in ordinary
2% of its paid-up share | Course of business, Corporate
capital Guarantee given/obtained
Jai Balaji | JBIPL is a Private Company | Purchase/Sale of 10
Infotech Private | in which one of the Director | goods/materials on an arm’s
Limited (JBIPL) | is a Member length basis and in ordinary

Course of business, Corporate
Guarantee given/obtained

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 any material related party transaction already entered by the
Company with its related parties as on the date of this resolution be and is hereby approved and ratified.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to decide upon the nature of
Related Party Transactions to be entered into with its Related Parties within the aforesaid limit;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do and perform all such acts,
deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for giving effect to this
Resolution.”

Registered Office:
3, Bentinck Street,
Kolkata — 700 001

By Order of the Board
For Chandi Steel Industries Limited

Sd/-
Place : Kolkata Seema Chowdhury
Date : 10™ August, 2021 Company Secretary
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Notes:

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, setting out the
material facts concerning each item of Special Business under item no. 3 to 4 of the Notice to be
transacted at the Forty Third Annual General Meeting (‘the meeting”) is annexed hereto and forms
part of the Notice. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) in respect of the Director
seeking re-appointment /appointment at this AGM are also annexed to this Notice.

In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing being a pre-
requisite, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”), vide its General Circular No. 14/2020,
17/2020 and 20/2020 dated 8th April, 2020, 13th April, 2020 and 5th May, 2020 respectively and
further by General Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13th January 2021(collectively referred to as “MCA
Circulars), and Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79  dated 12th May 2020 and Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 (collectively referred to as “SEBI
Circulars”) have allowed/permitted the Companies to conduct the Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without
the physical presence of the members at a common venue.

In accordance with these aforementioned Circulars, provisions of the Act and the SEBI Circulars
the 43¢ AGM of the Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM facility on 30" September,
2021.

The deemed venue for the 43" AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company i.e 3, Bentinck
Street, Kolkata- 700001 .

Pursuant to Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, any member of a
company entitled to attend and vote at a meeting of the company shall be entitled to appoint
another person as a proxy to attend and vote at the meeting on his behalf and the proxy need not be
a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM pursuant to the
MCA Circulars read with SEBI Circulars physical attendance of Members has been dispensed
with. Accordingly, THE FACILITY TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND CAST
VOTE ON BEHALF OF THE SHAREHOLDER WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE FOR THIS
AGM and hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route map of AGM are not annexed to
this Notice.

However, in terms of the provisions of Section 112 and 113 of the Act read with the said Circulars,
Institutional/ Corporate Members are requested to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the
relevant Board Resolution / Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the
duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote through e-mail to the Scrutinizer by e-
mail at plsoni@sonieducare.org with a copy marked to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com on or
before 29™ September, 2021 till 5.00 P.M. without which the vote shall not be treated as valid.

Attendance of the Members participating in the 43" AGM through VC/OAVM facility shall be
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

In case of joint holders, the Members whose name appears as the first holder in the order of the
names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitles to vote at the meeting.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Members and
Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Friday, 24™ September, 2021 to
Thursday, 30" September, 2021(both days inclusive).
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Members may join the Forty Third AGM in VC/ OAVM mode from 10:30 a.m i.e. 30 minutes
before the time scheduled to start the AGM and the Company may close the window for joining the

VC/ OAVM 15 minutes after the scheduled time to start the AGM by following the procedure
enclosed with the Notice.

Members may note that the VC/OAVM provided by CDSL, allows participation of atleast 1000
Members on a first-come-first-served basis. The large shareholders (i.e. shareholders holding 2% or
more shareholding), promoters, institutional investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Auditors, etc. can attend the 43" AGM without any restriction on account
of first-come-first-served principle.

Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to intimate any change in their address by
writing to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA), Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited
(MDPL) at their Corporate Office 23, R. N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata — 700001, email
id: mdpldc@yahoo.com and members holding shares in demat mode are requested to intimate any
change in their address or bank mandates to their respective Depository Participants. Any such
changes effected by the Depository Participants will automatically reflect in the Company’s
subsequent records.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the
Company of any change or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also advised
not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be
obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified from time to
time.

Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in
the same order of names are requested to write to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents, MDPL, at their Corporate Office 23, R. N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata — 700001,
email id: mdpldc@yahoo.com, enclosing their share certificates to enable the Company to
consolidate their holdings into single folio.

Pursuant to Section 88 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Register of Members is required to be
maintained in form MGT-1. In this respect, members holding shares in physical form are requested
to inform/update the following additional details to the RTA, Maheshwari Datamatics Private
Limited, Corporate Office: 23, R. N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata — 700001, email id:
mdplc@yahoo.com, who have not yet so updated:

E-mail id (of the first holder)

PAN

Unique Identification Number (AADHAR NO.)

Father’s /Mother’s/Spouse’s Name

Occupation

In case the member is a minor, Name of the Guardian and date of birth of the Member

g. CIN (In case the member is a body corporate)

mo Qo o

Members are requested to quote the Folio/Client ID & DP ID Nos. in all correspondences.

In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, resultant difficulties involved in dispatching of
physical copies of the Annual Report and in line with the said Circulars issued by the MCA and
said SEBI Circulars, the Annual Report including Notice of the 43" AGM of the Company inter
alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting is being sent only by email, to all the

Shareholders whose Email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s) for
communication purposes to the Shareholders and to all other persons so entitled.
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17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

Further, in terms of the applicable provisions of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations read with the
said MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 the Notice calling the AGM will be uploaded
at the Company’s website, at www.chandisteel.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the
website of CDSL i.e. www.evotingindia.com.

Copies of the Annual Report for the financial year 2020-21 and Notice of AGM is being sent only
by e-mail to the Members and to all other persons so entitled and who have registered their email
addresses with the Depository Participant (DP)/Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) or
the Company for this purpose.

To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are
requested to register the same with their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic form
and with Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, MDPL, in case the shares are held by them in
physical.

All the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice will be made available for electronic
inspection without any fee by the Members of the Company from the date of circulation of this
Notice upto the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. Members seeking to inspect such
documents can send an email to chandisteelindustries@gmail.com.

Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under
Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which
Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will also be made available
for electronic inspection during the Annual General Meeting. Members seeking to inspect such
documents can send an e-mail to chandisteelindustries@gmail.com.

The Shareholders, seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed
at the AGM, are requested to write to the Company atleast 7(Seven) days before the meeting
through Email on chandisteelindustries@gmail.com. The same will be replied by/on behalf of the
Company suitably.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in
demat mode are, therefore requested to submit PAN details to their Depository Participant.

Members holding shares in physical mode are also requested to submit their PAN and bank
account details to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer agent, Maheshwari Datamatics
Private Limited, Corporate Office: 23, R. N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata — 700001, email
id: mdpldc@yahoo.com.

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated that for registration of transfer of
securities, the transferee(s) as well as transferor(s) shall furnish a copy of their PAN Card to the
Company for registration of transfer of securities. Also, as per SEBI notification number
SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 08, 2018 for amendment to SEBI (Listing Obligations
And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, requests for effecting transfer of securities of
listed companies shall not be processed unless the securities are held in the demat form with a
depository, except in case of transmission or transposition of securities.

Section 72 of Companies Act, 2013 extends the nomination facility to individual shareholders of
the Company. Therefore, the shareholders holding share certificate in physical form and willing to
avail this facility may make nomination in Form SH-13 as per Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 which may be sent on request. In case of demat holding, the
shareholders should approach their respective Depository Participant for their nomination.



CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L13100WB1978PLC031670
ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021

25.

26.

Blank forms will be made available on request. The same can also be downloaded from the
Company’s website www.chandisteel.com under the head ‘Investor Relations’.

Subject to casting of requisite number of votes in favour of the resolution(s), the resolution(s) shall
be deemed to be passed on the date of Annual General Meeting of the Company.

a) In terms of the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time), and Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and in terms of SEBI vide circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/ CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 in relation to e-voting facilities
provided by the Listed Companies; the Company is pleased to provide the facility of “remote e-
voting” to its Shareholders, to enable them to cast their votes on the resolutions proposed to be
passed at the AGM, by electronic means. The instructions for e-voting are enclosed with the
notice. The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(“CDSL”), who will provide the e-voting facility of casting votes to a Shareholder using remote e-
voting system (e-voting from a place other than venue of the AGM) (“remote e-voting”) as well as
e-voting during the proceeding of the AGM (“e-voting at the AGM”).

Members are requested to carefully read the instructions of e-voting before exercising their
vote.

b) The remote e-voting facility will be made available during the following period:
Commencement of remote e-voting: From 10:00 a.m. on Monday, 27" September, 2021
End of remote e-voting: Up to 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 29" September, 2021

During this period, members holding shares either in physical or dematerialized mode as
on the cut-off date viz., Thursday, 23" September, 2021 may exercise their vote
electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting
thereafter.

¢)  Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes Member of the Company
after the dispatch of the Notice but on or before the cut-off date for e-voting i.e. Thursday,
23 September, 2021, he/she may write to the Registrar requesting for user id and password
or email at mdpldc@yahoo.com. However, if a member is already registered with CDSL for
remote e-voting then he/she can use his/her existing User ID and password for casting the
vote.

d) The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-Voting prior to the AGM may attend /
participate in the AGM through VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote on
such resolution again.

e)  The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid up equity share
capital of the Company as on the cut- off date being 23™ September, 2021.

f) A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial
Owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the
facility of remote e-Voting or casting vote through e-Voting system during the meeting.

g) A person who is not a member as on cut-off date should treat this notice for the information
purpose only.
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h)

3

The Board of Directors has appointed Ms. Premlata Soni, Practising Company Secretary,
(Membership No. FCS: 4385), having its registered office at 55, Ezra Street, 2™ Floor, Room
No. 4, Kolkata — 700 001, as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the entire e-voting process in a fair
and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of e-Voting at the 43rd AGM, first download the
votes cast at the AGM and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting and
shall make a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against,
invalid votes, if any, and whether the resolution has been carried or not, and such Report shall
then be sent to the Chairman or a person authorized by him, within two working days from
the conclusion of the 43rd AGM, who shall then countersign and declare the result of the
voting forthwith.

The results of e-voting will be communicated to the Stock Exchange where equity shares of
the Company are listed on the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited. Further, the results so
declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall also be placed on the website of the
Company as well as on the website of CDSL immediately after declaration of results by the
Chairman or any person authorized by him in writing.

Registered Office: By Order of the Board
3, Bentinck Street, For Chandi Steel Industries Limited
Kolkata — 700 001

Sd/-

Place : Kolkata Seema Chowdhury
Date 10" August, 2021 Company Secretary
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Annexure to the Notice

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013.

Item No. 3

On the basis of the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company at its
meeting held on 10® August, 2021 has approved the re-appointment of the Cost Auditors of the Company,
M/s Mondal & Associates, Proprietor Mr. Amiya Mondal, to conduct audit of the cost records of the
Company and providing Cost Audit Report and all such reports, annexures, records, documents etc., for the
financial year 2021-22, that may be required to be prepared and submitted by the Cost Auditors under
applicable statute at a consolidated remuneration of Rs. 20,000/- (excluding applicable taxes and
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, if any).

In terms of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be approved
by the Board and subsequently be ratified by the members of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22.

The Board of Directors, therefore, recommend the Resolution under item no. 3 to be passed as an Ordinary
Resolution by the members.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution.

Item No. 4

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and amendments made
thereto, from time to time, the Board can enter into specified Related Party Transactions in excess of the
limits prescribed under the said rules, only with the consent of the Members. Further, pursuant to Regulation
23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company can
enter into material related party transactions i.e. the transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken
together with previous transactions during a financial year, exceeding ten percent of the annual consolidated
turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the Company, only with the consent
of the Members by means of an Ordinary Resolution.

The Company proposes to enter into transactions with its related parties, from time to time, subject to the
approval of the Audit Committee and the Board, wherever required, on such terms and conditions as may be
mutually agreed upon between the Company and its related parties within an annual limit and such
transactions may qualify as material transactions. Details of the Related Parties are tabled herein below:
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(BIU)

Name of the Related | Name of the | Nature of Relationship
Party Director or Key
Managerial
Personnel who is
related
Jai Balaji Industries | Shri Sanjiv Jajodia Shri Sanjiv Jajodia and Shri Rajiv Jajodia are Brothers
Limited (JBIL) Shri Rajiv Jajodia and Shri Gaurav Jajodia is Son of Shri Devendra Prasad
Shri Gaurav Jajodia Jajodia, Managing Director of Chandi Steel Industries
Limited and they along with their relatives more than 2
% of the paid-up share capital of JBIL.
Jai Salasar Balaji | Shri Devendra Prasad | Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia is a Director and Member
Industries Pvt. Ltd. | Jajodia of JSBIPL.
(JSBIPL)
Balaji Ispat Udyog | Shri Sanjiv Jajodia Shri Sanjiv Jajodia, Brother of Shri Devendra Prasad

Jajodia, Managing Director of Chandi Steel Industries
Limited is the proprietor of the firm, BIU.

Jai Balaji Jyoti Steels | Shri Rajiv Jajodia Shri Rajiv Jajodia, Brother of Shri Devendra Prasad

Limited (JBJSL) Jajodia, Managing Director of Chandi Steel Industries
Limited is Director of JBJSL.

Jai Balaji Infotech | Shri Devendra Prasad | Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia is a Member of JSBIPL.

Private Limited | Jajodia

(JBIPL)

1) Nature, Material Terms, monetary value, and particulars of the contract or arrangement:

Nature of Contract/arrangement/transaction and estimated per annum monetary value of the same is
stated in the resolution.

2) Any other information relevant or important for the members to take decision:

The Company enters /proposes to enter into related party transactions with the Bodies Corporate as per

the table above, on an arm’s length basis and in ordinary course of business with the intention to further

the Company’s interest. Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to transactions
entered into by the Company in its ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. However

as a matter of abundant precaution, the Board considers it suitable to take the consent of the members
for the aforesaid related party transactions within the estimated limits.

The Board of Directors, therefore, recommend the Resolution under item no. 4 to be passed as a Ordinary
Resolution by the Members.

Except the aforesaid Promoter Directors and their relatives (to the extent of their shareholding interest in
the Company), no other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are, in any way, concerned

or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution.
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Annexure to the notice pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Brief profile of Director Seeking appointment/re-appointment at the ensuing Forty Third Annual
General Meeting

Name of Director

Shri Susanta Sarkar

DIN

06449312

Date of Birth

15% October, 1970

Date of Appointment as Director

19% November, 2012

Qualification

Higher Secondary, Draughtmanship (Mach. & Civil)

Expertise in Specific functional area

Central and Excise

Membership of the Committees of the Board| NIL
of Directors of the Company

Directorship held in any other listed | NIL
Companies

Membership in the Committees of the Board| Nil
of Directors of other Listed Entity in which he

is a Director

No. of Equity Shares held in the Company NIL
Inter-se Relationships between Director None

10
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@)

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL
MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER:

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities
in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and
passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been
decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through
their accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to
cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless
authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-
Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode
are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository

Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of
shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities
in Demat mode
with CDSL

1)  Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page
without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on
Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

2)  After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option
for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided
by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page
of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is
also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e.
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service
providers’ website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com
home page or click on https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin. The
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see

11
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the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities
in demat mode
with NSDL

1)  If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services
website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will
have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be
able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

2)  If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3)  Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which
is available under ‘Sharecholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will
have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you
can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and
you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting

Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities in
demat mode)
login through
their Depository
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After
Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID

and Forget Password option available at above mentioned website.

12




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L13100WB1978PLC031670
ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to

login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with CDSL contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

Members facing any technical issue in login can

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at
022- 23058738 and 022-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can
securities in Demat mode with NSDL contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

(ii))  Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for PHYSICAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUAL HOLDING IN DEMAT FORM.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

2) Click on “Shareholders” module.

3) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with
the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on
an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares
in Demat.
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical sharecholders)
e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA
or contact Company/RTA.
Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded
Bank Details | in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.
OR Date of . . .
Birth (DOB) e If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please
enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.
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(iii)
(iv)

™)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu
wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field.
Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of
any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other
person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Chandi Steel Industries Limited> on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK?”, else to change your vote,
click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting
page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

ADDITIONAL FACILITY FOR NON - INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
CUSTODIANS - FOR REMOTE VOTING ONLY.

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote
on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.
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10.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer
to verify the same.

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz;
chandisteelindustries@gmail.com (designated email address by company) , if they have voted from
individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the
same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/EGM THROUGH
VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/EGM is same as the
instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be
displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid
any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate
any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register
themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance between 20" September, 2021 to 260
September, 2021 mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at chandisteelindustries@gmail.com (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish
to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance between 20th
September, 2021 to 26th September, 2021 mentioning their name, demat account number/folio
number, email id, mobile number at chandisteelindustries@gmail.com (company email id). These
queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express
their views/ask questions during the meeting.

Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and have
not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from

doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the EGM/AGM.

If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the EGM/AGM and
if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the
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votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the
meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- Please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual
meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System,
you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738 and 022-
23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh
Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon
Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an
email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the Forty Third Annual Report along with the summary of the Audited
Financial Statement of your Company for the financial year ended 31* March, 2021.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Financial Year ended| Financial Year ended
31* March, 2021 31* March, 2020
Revenue from Operations (Net) and Other Income 23,029.89 24,118.08
Less: Total Expenses 22,358.77 22.,950.88
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax 671.12 1,167.20
Less: Exceptional items - -
Profit before Tax (PBT) 671.12 1,167.20
Less: Current Tax Expenses (Net) 173.42 288.78
Deferred Tax (12.90) (7.99)
Short Provision related to earlier year - 4.68
Total Tax Expense 160.52 285.47
Profit after Tax (PAT) 510.60 881.73
Other Comprehensive Income 0.92 (1.80)
Total Comprehensive Income 511.52 879.93
Earnings per share (excluding extraordinary items) (of Rs
each)
Basic and Diluted 4.85 8.37

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS

The net revenue from operations and other income reduced to Rs. 23,029.89/- lacs in 2020-21 in comparison to Rs.
24,118.08 lacs in 2019-20. The Profit before Tax (PBT) for the year decreased to Rs. 671.12 lacs as compared to Rs.
1,167.20 lacs in the previous year.

The outbreak of Corona virus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing a significant disruption and
slowdown of economic activity. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines,
social distancing and closures of non-essential services and the uncertainty associated with the lifting or re-
imposition of these restrictions have further aggravated the business environment.

Following the COVID-19 outbreak in India, the government announced the first phase of the nationwide lockdown
for 21 days from March 25, 2020 to contain the spread of the infection. As a result, the company has to temporarily
scale down or suspend operations at various locations. The constrained movement of people and materials, the
shutting down of operations in supplier plants and customer business, affected the Company’s plant operations.

In contrast, the impact on manufacturing so far has been relatively limited. The influence lies mainly in supply chain
obstructions and difficulty in recovering production due to the delayed return of workforces, lack of personnel
mobility, and traffic restrictions. The magnitude of these disruptions increases as the time to recovery lengthens. The
disruption caused by Covid-19 and the resultant lockdown has impacted the sales performance and cash flows. To
mitigate some impact, the plan was drawn to cut down cost, to the extent feasible.
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Though, the demand is expected to remain subdued in the near team. Your company is committed to its vision to
emerge as an efficient producer of iron and steel products. Your company is focused on increasing capacity
utilisation of all units, reducing cost and improving operational efficiency.

DIVIDEND

In aspect of the uncertain market situations, ability of the Company to act viably and profitably and in lieu of
requirement of funds for total fixed expenses and operations of the Company, your Directors do not recommend a
dividend for the financial year 2020-21.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Your Company is focused to balance cost, quality and aspiration for consumer affordability at every price point. The

Company has preserved an amount of Rs.510.60 Lacs in the Statement of Profit and Loss and thus no sum has been
sent to the General Reserves.

FORFEITURE OF PARTLY PAID-UP EQUITY SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Forfeiture of 5,000 partly paid Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only on which total amount of
Rs.37,500/- remains unpaid. The details of which are as follows:

The Company has issued the final demand cum forfeiture notice on 03-04-2021 to the partly paid equity shareholders
of the Company demanding the payment of outstanding money towards the partly paid Equity Shares allotted to
them. The notice specified the fact that on failure to pay the outstanding money within one month of the notice, their
shares will be liable to be forfeited.

Still the shareholders have not paid the allotment money on the partly paid equity shares allotted to them.
Considering the stated facts, the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 28™ June, 2021

approved the forfeiture of partly paid Equity shares on which outstanding allotment money are still unpaid.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date
of the report.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s paid up share capital is Rs. 10,53,62,000/- and the Authorized share capital is Rs. 12,00,00,000/-
CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

During the year there was no change in the nature of business of the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES OR JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

As on the date of reporting, your Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint venture companies.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Changes in Directors and KMP

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Shri Susanta Sarkar (DIN — 06449312) retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The proposal regarding the re-appointment of
the aforesaid director sought members’ approval. The Board of Directors recommend his re-appointment.

At the 42nd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th September, 2020, the shareholders have:

Appointed Smt. Rakhi Bajoria (DIN: 07161473) as an Independent Director of the Company for a period of 5(five)
years with effect from 30™ June, 2020.

Re-appointed Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary (DIN: 07603658) as an Independent Director of the Company for a
period of 5(five) years with effect from 1st September, 2021.

Re-appointed Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit (DIN: 07603642) as an Independent Director of the Company for a period
of 5(five) years with effect from 1st September, 2021.

During the year under review, Smt. Swati Agarwal (DIN: 07158355), Independent Director of the Company has
resigned with effect from 30™ June, 2020 due to pre-occupation of work and ceased to be the Director of the
Company. The Board expresses its gratitude towards Smt. Swati Agarwal for her contributions to the Company. The
Board deeply appreciates her valuable dedication and support throughout her tenure in the Company.

A brief resume of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting is
incorporated in the Notice calling the said meeting.

The Board recommends the aforementioned appointments for approval of the members at the ensuing AGM. The
brief resume and other details as required under the Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the Directors seeking approval of the members for the
appointment/re-appointment of the Directors at the ensuing Annual General Meeting have been incorporated in the
notice of the Forty Third Annual General Meeting of the Company along with brief details about them.

None of the directors are disqualified for being appointed as Directors, as specified in Section 164(2) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

In terms of the Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, all independent
directors of the Company have enrolled themselves on the independent directors databank and will undergo the
online proficiency self-assessment test within the specified timeline unless exempted under the aforesaid rules.

During the year, there has been no other change in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. Details pertaining
to their remuneration have been provided in the Copy of Annual Return available on the website of the company
“www.chandisteel.com”.

Statement of declaration given by independent directors

All the Independent Directors have furnished the requisite declarations under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the rules made thereunder and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
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2015 that each of them meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013
and there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as Independent Director during the
year.

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors of the Company

Details of separate meeting of Independent directors held in terms of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are given in the
Corporate Governance Report.

. Familiarization programme for Independent Directors

The familiarization program was imparted to the Independent Directors by the Company to state their roles, rights,
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the
Company and related matters.

Pursuant to Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Company should familiarise the independent directors through various programmes about the Company. During the
year under review, a familiarization programme was conducted with the presence of all Independent Directors of the
Company. The details of the familiarisation programmes are available at the website of the Company at:
“www.chandisteel.com”.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions. The Policy is also available on the
Company’s Website “www.chandisteel.com”. The policy intends to ensure that proper reporting, approval and
disclosure processes are in place for all transactions between the Company and its related parties. All the contracts/
arrangements/transactions entered into with Related Parties during the financial year 2020-21 as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 were in
the ordinary course of business and on arms length basis.

It is to be stated that the Company has entered into certain related party transactions as defined under Section 188(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and material related party transactions exceeding ten percent of the annual turnover as
per the last audited financial statements. Approval for these related party transactions as stated above and defined
under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchange have
been sought vide ordinary resolution passed at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30"
September, 2020. Further pursuant to Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, approval of the members is sought to be taken at the ensuing Annual General Meeting for
material related party transactions.

All related party transactions are placed quarterly before the Audit Committee for consideration and approval.
Further, prior Omnibus Approval has been obtained from the Audit Committee of the Company at the committee
meeting held on 28" January, 2021 in respect of related party transactions whose value does not exceed one crore per
transaction.

All Related Party Transactions in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24 are disclosed are
annexed into the notes to financial statements forming part of the Annual Report. Particulars of contracts or
arrangements with related parties along with the justification for entering into such contract or arrangement is
annexed as “Annexure A” in form AOC — 2 and forms a part of Board’s Report.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 and 134(3)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules
thereunder and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 your company has formulated a ‘Nomination and Remuneration’ Policy which
includes the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director, sets out the
terms and conditions for appointment and remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
employees. The said Policy has been hosted on the Company’s website under the weblink “www.chandisteel.com”.
The same is attached as “Annexure — B” and forms an integral part of this Report.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD HELD DURING THE YEAR

It is to be noted that your Company followed the prescribed rules and provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Secretarial Standard — 1 (SS-1) as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on business policy and strategy apart from other Board
Business. During the year under review, 9 (Nine) Board Meetings were convened and the intervening gap between
two consecutive meetings did not exceed 120 days. The dates of the meetings of the Board of Directors of the
Company are 25" May, 2020; 30" June, 2020; 29" August, 2020; 19" October, 2020; 12" November, 2020; 19"
December, 2020; 28™ January, 2021; 23™ February, 2021 and 1* March, 2021, the details of which are given in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The detail and the number of board meetings attended by each Director during the financial year 2020-21 has been
provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

In compliance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 your company has five board level committees comprising of Audit Committee,
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee and Internal Complaints Committee. The Board periodically evaluates the performance of all committees
as a whole. Further, composition of the various committees of the Board is also hosted on the website of the
Company viz “www.chandisteel.com”. The details of the Committees of the Board are provided in the Report on
Corporate Governance forming part of this Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As on 31" March, 2021, the Audit Committee comprises of Smt. Rakhi Bajoria (Non-Executive Independent
Director)*, the Chairman of the Committee, Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia (Executive Director) and Shri Ashok
Kumar Choudhary (Non-Executive Independent Director). The Board has accepted all recommendations made by the
Audit Committee during the year.

*Smt. Swati Agarwal has resigned w.e.f 30th June, 2020, and Smt. Rakhi Bajoria has been elected the Chairman of
the Committee in her place.

Other details about the Audit Committee and other Committees of the Board are provided in the Report on Corporate
Governance forming part of this Annual Report.
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WHISTLE BLOWER /VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has adopted and formulated a formal mechanism for all directors, employees and vendors of the
Company termed vigil mechanism for conducting the affairs in a fair and transparent manner by adopting highest
standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behaviour. It requires every Director or employees to
swiftly report to the management any actual or possible violation of the code or any event wherein he or she becomes
aware of that which could affect the business or reputation of the Company and also report instances of leak of
unpublished price sensitive information. The Policy safeguards the whistle blower to report concerns or grievances
and also provides direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The said policy has been made available on
the website of the Company viz. “www.chandisteel.com”.

Your Company annually reviews any instances of fraud and mismanagement inside the affairs of the Company.
During the year 2020-21, there has been no such instances. Further, there has been no change to the whistle blower
policy during the financial year.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the performance of the Independent
Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of the committees of the Board. The performance
evaluation of all the directors was carried out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The performance
evaluation of the chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. Details
of the same are given in the Report on Corporate Governance annexed hereto

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified in Section 143(12) of the
Companies Act.

SECRETARIAL STANDARD

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards i.e. SS-1 and SS-2 issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors to the best of their
knowledge and ability confirm:

i.  In the preparation of annual accounts for the financial year ended 31* March, 2021, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

ii. We have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and made
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as on 31* March, 2021 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

iii.  We have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

22



CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L13100WB1978PLC031670
ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

iv.  The annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 March, 2021, have been prepared on a going concern
basis;

v. Internal financial controls to be followed by the Company were laid down and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

vi.  Proper systems were devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management is the process of identifying, assessing and controlling threats to an organization's capital and
earnings. These threats, or risks, could stem from a wide variety of sources, including financial uncertainty, legal
liabilities, strategic management errors, accidents and natural disasters. IT security threats and data-related risks, and
the risk management strategies to alleviate them, have become a top priority for digitized companies. As a result, a
risk management plan increasingly includes companies' processes for identifying and controlling threats to its digital
assets, including proprietary corporate data, a customer's personally identifiable information and intellectual property.

Your Company is exposed to inherent uncertainties owing to the sectors in which it operates and the Company has a
framework in line with risk management process of identifying, prioritizing and mitigating risks which may impact
attainment of short and long term business goals of the Company. Your Company has been periodically assessing the
key risks areas which may affect the business goals and periodically revisits the relevance of the identified risks and
progress of the mitigation plans undertaken. The risk management framework is interwoven with strategic planning,
deployment and capital project process of the Company. The process aims to analyse the internal and external
environment and manage economic, financial, market, operational, compliance and sustainability risks and
capitalizes opportunities for business success.

The Board of Directors of your Company has approved and adopted a Risk Management Policy of the Company. The
policy contains a detailed framework of risk assessment by evaluating the probable threats taking into consideration
the business line of the Company, monitoring the risks so assessed and managing them well within time so as to
avoid hindrance in its growth objectives that might in any way threaten the existence of your Company. The said
policy is also available on the website of the Company “www.chandisteel.com”.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND ITS ADEQUACY

A vigorous system of internal control, which is compatible with the range and nature of its business, forms an
integral part of the Company’s Corporate Governance policies. The Board has devised systems and procedures for
ensuing the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

We, at Chandi Steel, have an internal audit function that inculcates best standards and practices. The scope of work,
authority and resources of Internal Audit are regularly reviewed by the Audit Committee and its work is supported by
the services of accountancy firms. The members of the Audit Committee of your Company are well versed with the
financial management. The Internal Audit conducted also provides assurance to the Board on the effectiveness of
relevant internal controls.

The Committee calls for comments of the internal and statutory auditors about the Company’s internal audit and

scope of audit. During the year under review, such controls were tested and no material weaknesses in the operations
were discovered.
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AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

Statutory Auditors

In terms of the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit & Auditors)
Rules, 2014, M/s. B Y Jatania & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 311010E), were appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of 39™ Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 23" September, 2017 till the conclusion of the 44™ Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Auditors’ Report to the shareholders for the financial year 2020-21 does not contain any qualification,
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. Comments/Qualification of the Auditors in their report and the notes
forming part of the Accounts are self-explanatory and further do not call for any clarification or comments. During
the year under review, the Auditors had not reported any matter under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013,
therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under 134(3)(ca) of the Act.

Cost Auditors

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
as amended, the cost audit record maintained by the Company is required to be audited. The Board of Directors, on
the recommendation of the Audit Committee, appointed M/s. Mondal & Associates, Cost Accountants, Kolkata for
conducting the cost audit of the Company for Financial Year 2021-22.

As required under the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year
2021-22 is required to be ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, resolution seeking members
ratification for remuneration to be paid to Cost Auditors is included in the Notice convening Annual General
Meeting.

Your Company has filed the Cost Audit Report for the financial year 2019-20 with the Registrar of Companies,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs in the XBRL mode during the year under review.

Internal Auditor

In line with the requirements of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under M/s. D. Sikaria
& Co., Chartered Accountants of 112, Chittaranjan Avenue, 3" Floor, Kolkata - 700 073, were appointed as the
Internal Auditor at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 30™ June, 2020 for the Financial Year 2020-21 to
conduct internal audit of the functions and activities of the Company. The Audit Committee of the Company
periodically reviews the Internal Audit Report and checks for any findings and follow up thereon.

Secretarial Auditor

Ms. Priti Todi (ACS:14611), Practising Company Secretary, Partner of Bajaj Todi & Associates (formerly P.S. &
Associates), was appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company as required under Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and rules made thereunder. The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 as prescribed, issued
by Ms. Priti Todi is annexed as “Annexure C” and forms a part of this report.

The secretarial audit report to the shareholders for the year under review does not contain any qualifications,

reservations and adverse remark or disclaimer. The observations made in the secretarial auditor’s report are self
explanatory and therefore do not call for further elucidation.
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The Company has also undertaken an audit for the FY 2020-21 pursuant to SEBI Circular No.
CIR/CFD/CMO/1/27/2019 dated February 08, 2019 for all applicable compliances as per the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Regulations and Circular/ Guidelines issued thereunder. The Report (Annual Secretarial Compliance
Report) has been duly submitted to the Stock Exchange for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

COPY OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 a copy of the Annual Return
has been placed on the website of the Company under the weblink “www.chandisteel.com”.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments as on the financial year ended 31* March, 2021 as covered under
the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its
Powers) Rules, 2014 are given in Note No. 4, 6.4 and 29 of the notes to Financial Statements provided in the Annual
Report.

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted/received any deposits from the public within the
ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Further,
no amount of deposit remained unpaid or unclaimed at the end of the year i.e. as on 31* March, 2021. Subsequently,
no default has been made in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon during the year.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY

There were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals during the year under
review impacting the going concern status and the future operations of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company is committed to observing good corporate governance practices and adhere to Corporate Governance
guidelines as laid out in the Listing Regulations. In terms of Regulation 34 of the Securities Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a Report on Corporate Governance along with
Compliance Certificate and Management Discussion and Analysis are annexed to this report and forms integral part
of this Report.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company endeavours to provide equal opportunity and key positions to women professionals. As per the
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder your company has formulated an Internal Complaints Committee having designated
members to redress complaints against Sexual Harassment. During the year under review, there were no complaints
reported against pertaining to Sexual Harassment.

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
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The relevant information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
as stipulated in Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, is annexed herewith as “Annexure D” forming part of Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND OTHER RELATED DISCLOSURES

The information required to be disclosed in the Directors’ Report pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is
annexed as “Annexure E” forming part of this report.

The statement containing names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and their other details as
required to be furnished under Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided in a separate annexure forming part of this report. Further, the report and the
accounts are being sent to the Members excluding the aforesaid annexure. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the said
annexure is open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company. Any Member interested in obtaining a copy
of the same may write to the Company Secretary.

Your Company does not have any other employee whose particulars are required to be furnished under Rule 5(2) and
5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

Your Company has adopted a Code for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in equity shares
of the Company by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The said Code of Conduct is available
on the website of the Company at “www.chandisteel.com”. The Code requires preclearance for dealing in
Company’s shares and prohibit the purchase or sale of shares in your company by the Directors and designated
employees, while they are in possession of unpublished price sensitive information and also during the period when
the Trading Window remains closed.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

In accordance with the requirements of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, your
Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The terms of reference of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee is provided in the Corporate Governance Report. The Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy (CSR Policy) formulated under recommendation of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is available in
the website of the company.

Further, as per the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the companies specified therein are
required to spend at least two percent of the average net profits made during the three immediately preceding
financial years towards CSR activities.

The brief outline Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR) Policy of the Company as adopted by the Board and the
initiatives undertaken on CSR activities during the year are set out in Annexure-F of this Report in the format
prescribed in the Companies(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014. For other details regarding the CSR
Committee, please refer to Corporate Governance Report.

LISTING

The equity shares of the Company are listed on The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE).
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Form AOC -2

“Annexure —A”

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended
31% March, 2021, which were not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended
31°" March, 2021 are as follows:

Name(s) of the related | Nature of | Duration of | Salient terms of | Date(s) of | Amount
party and nature of | contracts/arrang | the contracts | the contracts or | approval by | paid as
relationship ements/transacti | /arrangemen | arrangements or | the Board, if | advances,
ons ts/transactio | transactions any if any
ns including the ( in Lacs)
value, if any
(a) (b) (©) (d (e) (€)
Jai Salasar Balaji | Purchase/sale of Ongoing Based on transfer 12.02.2020 Nil
Industries Private | goods/products in pricing guidelines
Limited (JSBIPL) ordinary course of

(Shri Devendra Prasad
Jajodia is a Common
Promoter Director &
Member.

business
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“Annexure-B”
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

PREFACE

Human Resource occupies an important place in the organisation’s growth. Chandi Steel Industries Limited (“the
Company”) has been built on the active assistance, commitment, dedication, hard work and loyalty of its
employees. The Board is committed to transparent, fair and sound policies for determining appropriate
remuneration at all levels of the Company.

As we are growing, personal and professional development of the directors and employees becomes important to
motivate them as also to ensure efficient functioning of the organisation.

VISION

Effective people management for creating competitive advantage for all stakeholders and creating a transparent
system for determining the appropriate level of remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and
other senior management employees.

OBJECTIVE

» To attract, nurture and retain the best talent by inculcating a culture of learning, performing, developing
creativity and teamwork;

» To ensure reasonable remuneration to the Directors, KMP and other employees so as to motivate them of the
quality required to run the Company successfully;

» To ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks.

MONITORING OF THE POLICY

The implementation of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy shall be monitored by the Nomination and
Remuneration committee of the Board constituted as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

PURPOSE OF THE COMMITTEE

» Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director
and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees;

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors;
Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

Y VY

» ldentifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and
removal.
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»  Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of independent directors.
» Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE
Nomination

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall identify potential candidates with appropriate qualification,
knowledge, expertise and experience.

When considering candidates, the Committee strives to achieve a balance of knowledge, experience and
accomplishment such that the Company reflects a diversity of talent, age, skill, expertise and perspective. While
evaluating a Director, KMP or other senior management employees for recommending to the Board, the
Committee shall take into consideration various criteria that are in the best interests of the Company and its
stakeholders, some of which are given hereunder:

»  Educational qualifications and experience of the candidate so as to be in terms with the applicable laws, rules,
regulations as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013, listing regulations and other applicable acts;
»  Willingness of a person to act as such;

»  The candidate should reflect the highest standards of integrity, ethics and character, and value such qualities
in other;
»  The candidate should have the ability to devote sufficient time to the business and affairs of the Company;

» Demonstrate the capacity and desire to represent, fairly and equally, the best interests of the Company's
stockholders as a whole;

»  Access the present as well as future needs of the Company. Further, while nominating Directors, it must be
ensured that the Board is structured in a way that:
= it has proper understanding of and expertise to deal with the present as well as emerging business issues
= exercises independent judgement
=  encourage enhanced performance of the business as a whole.

Accordingly, the process of the Committee for identifying nominees shall reflect the Company’s practice of re-
nominating incumbent directors and employees who continue to satisfy the Committee’s criteria, whom the
Committee believes to continue to make important contributions towards the growth, reputation and well being of
the Company as a whole and who consents to continue their service with the Company.

Further, in addition to the above criteria, the appointment of Independent Directors of the Company shall also be
guided by the following Terms and Conditions in compliance with schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013.
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»  The appointment of Independent Directors shall be independent of the company management. While selecting
Independent Directors the Board shall ensure that there is appropriate balance of skills, experience and
knowledge in the Board so as to enable the Board to discharge its functions and duties effectively;

»  The appointment of Independent Directors shall be approved at the meeting of the Shareholders;

» The appointment of Independent Directors shall be formalised through a letter of appointment stating the
requisite details as per the requirements of schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013;

»  The Independent Directors shall be appointed for a fixed term of upto five years or such lesser term as may be
decided mutually between the Board and the Directors and shall be eligible for re-appointment for a further
term of upto five years on passing a special resolution by the Company. Further, no Independent Director
shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms. However, they shall be eligible for re-appointment
after the expiration of cooling period of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director;

» The Independent Directors shall be responsible for complying with the duties as specified under section 166
of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, their liabilities shall also be limited to the respective provisions of the
Companies, 2013 and rules made there under;

» Independent Directors shall be expected to ensure compliance with the Code of Conduct as laid down by the
Company;

» Independent Directors shall be paid sitting fees subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made there under as well as the terms of this policy.
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Remuneration

The committee shall:

» meet at least once in a year

»  ensure that the quorum of either two members or one third of the members of the committee, whichever is
greater, including at least one independent director is present

» ensure that the compensation to the Board, KMP and other senior management employees is reasonable
and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate quality directors and KMPs;

» approve any significant changes in the executive director’s contract;

» determine payment of sitting fees, if any payable for directors for attending meetings of the Board;
» ensure that there is balance between fixed pay and incentive based pay (if any) in the remuneration to be
paid the Directors, KMPs and other senior management employees.

Directors Remuneration

The Company may pay remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and allowances (fixed component) and
commission (variable component) to Managing and Whole-time Directors. Salary shall be paid within the
range approved by the Shareholders. Commission, if any, shall be calculated with reference to net profits of the
Company in a particular financial year and shall be determined by the Board of Directors at the end of the
financial year based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, subject to
overall ceilings stipulated in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

Senior Management Remuneration

The salary of other senior management employees shall be competitive and based on the individual’s
qualification, experience, responsibilities and performance and shall be governed by the HR policy of the
Company.

Determining criteria for performance evaluation of the Board and Individual Directors
The Board shall evaluate its own performance based on the following criteria:
e  Composition of the Board in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ;
e  Frequency of meetings held during the year and matters taken up thereat;
e Ability of the Board to take uniform decisions for the betterment of the Company taking into consideration
the individual views of all the Directors comprising it;
e  Its wisdom and judgement to help the Company prosper;
e Ability of the Board to evaluate risk and devise suitable measures to mitigate them etc.

The Board shall evaluate the performance of individual directors (including independent directors) based on
the following criteria:
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e  Attendance of the individual directors and level of participation at the meetings of the Board and
committees thereof and the general meetings;
e  Contribution in long term strategic planning;
e  Professional conduct and independence;
e Level of commitment etc.
The above list is illustrative.

Such performance evaluation of Directors (including independent directors) shall be done by the entire Board
of Directors (excluding the director being evaluated).

In case of Independent Director, the Board shall determine whether to extend or continue the term of
appointment of the Independent Director on the basis of the report of performance evaluation carried by the

Board.

In addition to the above, the Board shall also evaluate the performance of various Board level Committees.
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(i

(i)
(iii)
(iv)

(v)

FORM MR -3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
for the financial year ended 315t March 2021

[Pursuant to Regulation 244 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Chandi Steel Industries Limited.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and theadherence
to good corporate practices by Chandi Steel Industries Limited. (hereinafter called “the Company”).

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating thecorporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

We have conducted online verification and examination of records, as facilitated by the Company, due to
Covid 19 and subsequent lockdown situation for the purpose of issuing this Report

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we herebyreport that in our opinion, the

Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 315t March 2021, complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that theCompany has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other recordsmaintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 3 1st March, 2021, according to the provisions of:

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder.

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment andExternal Commercial Borrowings;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

b. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018
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Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act,1992 (SEBI Act) were not applicable to the Company under the financial year under report:
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and DisclosureRequirements)
Regulations, 2018;
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)Regulations,
2014;
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,2009; and
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing Alloy & Non-Alloy Steel Bars — round & flat,
Alloy & Non- Alloy Steel scrap. No Act specifically for the aforesaid businesses is/are applicable to the
Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The Listing Agreement(s) entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s) as required under
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

As per the information and explanations provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we report that under the provisions of the Foreign
Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder, to the extent of:

(i) External Commercial Borrowings were not attracted to the Company under thefinancial
year under report;

(ii) Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) were not attracted to the Company under the financialyear under
report,

(iii)  Overseas Direct Investment by Residents in Joint Venture / Wholly Owned Subsidiaryabroad
were not attracted to the Company under the financial year under report.

During the financial year under report, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentioned above.

As per the information and explanations provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorised
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we report that the Company has not made any
GDRs/ADRs or any Commercial Instrument under the financial year under report.

We have relied on the information and representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and

mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws, and Regulations to
the Company.
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We further report that:

(a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act.

(b)  Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system existsfor seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

(c) All the decisions of the Board and Committees thereof were carried through with requisite
majority.

10. We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliancewith applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral

part of this report.

For Bajaj Todi & Associates

Sd/-
Priti Todi Place: Kolkata
Partner Date: 10" August, 2021

C.P. No.: 7270, ACS: 14611
UDIN: A014611C000762039
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‘Annexure A’

To,
The Members
Chandi Steel Industries Limited.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Ourresponsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure
that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

DISCLAIMER
The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards are

the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company

For Bajaj Todi & Associates

Sd/-
Priti Todi Place: Kolkata
Partner Date: 10™ August, 2021

C.P. No.: 7270, ACS: 14611
UDIN: A014611C000762039
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“Annexure D”

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(M) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ
WITH RULE 8 OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014, PERTAINING TO
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2021:

A. Conservation of energy:

a) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy and steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate
sources of energy:

Continuous efforts/measures are being initiated and training programmes are being imparted to the
workers at plant level for conservation of energy.

b) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment;
No Capital Investment has been made on energy conservation equipment.

B. Technology absorption:

i.  Efforts made towards technology absorption:

Continuous efforts are being made during the design, engineering and construction stage to ensure that
the technology is understood and necessary measures to minimize energy consumption are
incorporated in the plant.

ii. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution:

As a result of above efforts, there was improvement in product quality and productivity, better
availability of materials, increase in house capability and saving in fixed processing cost.

iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year):

a. The details of technology imported : Nil

b. The year of import :  Not Applicable
c.  Whether the technology been fully absorbed :  Not Applicable
d. If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, : Not Applicable

and the reasons thereof

iv.  Expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NIL
C. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

Details of Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows and outgo in terms of actual outflows
during the year under reporting:

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Inflows 9,103.14 9,156.70
Outgo NIL NIL
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“Annexure E”

DETAILS PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 FOR
THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2021

i) The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company for the financial year:

S1. No. Name of Director Ratio
1. Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia 12.59 times
2. Shri Susanta Sarkar 1.5 times
3. Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary 0
4. Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit 0
5. Smt. Rakhi Bajoria 0

ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

In the financial year under review, there has been an increase in the remuneration of the Shri Devendra
Prasad Jajodia, Managing Director, by 30.56%. There has been no change in the remuneration of the Shri
Susanta Sarkar, Director, Shri Tushar Kanti Sarkar, Chief Financial Officer and Smt. Seema Chowdhury,
Company Secretary in the financial year under review.

iili) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year:

Median remuneration of employees in the financial year has been increased by 15.2 %.

iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company:
There were 205 employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31* March, 2021.

v) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial

remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial remuneration:

Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the
last financial year was 15% whereas average increase in the managerial remuneration was 7.64%.

The salary increase is based on compensation philosophy of the organisation which takes into account
internal as well as external factors.

vi) It is hereby confirmed that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
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“Annexure F”’

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

Brief outline on CSR policy of the Company:

We, at Chandi Steel believes that by exhibiting socially, environmentally and ethically responsible
behaviour in governance of its operations, the business can generate value and long term sustainability for
itself while making positive contribution for the betterment of the society.

The policy provides for undertaking any activity prescribed under Schedule VII to the Companies Act,
2013 to attain the goal of sustainable and overall development of the society wherein the Company is

carrying out its business operations.

Composition of the Committee:

SL Name of Director Designation/ Nature of | No. of meetings | Number of
No. Directorship of CSR | meetings of
Committee held | CSR
during the year | Committee
attended
during the
year
1. Shri Sumit Kumar Independent Non- 2 2
Rakshit Executive
Director (Chairman)
2. Shri Devendra Prasad Executive Director 2 2
Jajodia (Member)
3. | Smt. Rakhi Bajoria# Independent Non- 2 2
Executive
Director (Member)

*Smt. Swati Agarwal has resigned w.e.f 30" June, 2020 and Smt. Rakhi Bajoria has been appointed the
Member of the Committee in place of Ms. Agarwal.

Provide the Web-link where Compositions of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company: “www.chandisteel.com”

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 : Not Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the
financial year:
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SI. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off | Amount required to be
from preceding financial set-off for the financial
years (In Rs.) year (In Rs.)
1. 2019-2020 NIL 0.24 lacs

6. Average Net Profit of the Company as per section 135(5):

The average Net Profit for the Company in the Financial Year calculated as per Section 198 of the Act
during the three immediately preceding financial year amounts to Rs. 950.47 lacs.

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): 19.01 lacs
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial year:

NIL

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year: NIL
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c¢): 19.01 lacs

8. (a) Details of CSR spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total amount

Amount unspent

spent for the
financial year

section 135(6)

Total amount transferred to
unspent CSR Account as per

Amount transferred to any fund specified
under schedule VII as per second proviso of

section 135(5)

Amount Date of | Name of the | Amount Date of
transfer Fund transfer
19.25 lacs N.A.
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: N.A
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
M @ 3) “ ) (6) (@) ®)
Sl. | Name | Items Local Location of the | Amount | Mode of | Mode of
N | of the | from area project spent for | implementati | implementation —
0. | project | the list | (Yes/No) the on - Direct| Through
of project | (Yes/No) implementing
activitie agency
s in State | District Name CSR
schedul registra
e VII to tion
the Act number
1. Rural No Rajas | Churu | 19.25 No Ram
Develop than lacs Kumar
ment Jajodia
projects Trust
Total 19.25
lacs

(d) Amount spent in Administrative overheads: NIL
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment: NA
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() Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 19.25 lacs
(g) Excess amount for set off:

SI No. Particular Amount
i. | Two percent of average net profit of the company as | 19.01 acs

per section 135(5)

ii. | Total amount spent for the financial year 19.25 acs

iii. | Excess amount spent for the financial year (ii-i) 0.24 acs

iv. | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or | NIL

programmes or activities of the previous financial

years

v. | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial | 0.24 lacs

years (iii-iv)

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
year(s): N.A.

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: NA

11.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5): N.A

Sd/- Sd/-
Devendra Prasad Jajodia Sumit Kumar Rakshit
Managing Director Chairman CSR Committee

Date: 10™ August, 2021
Place: Kolkata
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Report of the Directors on Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is concerned with the way corporate entities are governed, as distinct from the way
business within those companies are managed. Corporate governance structures specifies the distribution of
rights and responsibilities among different participants in the company such as board, management,
shareholders and other stakeholders; and spells out the rules and procedures for corporate decision-making.
By doing so, it provides the structure through which the company’s objectives are set along with the means of
attaining these objectives as well as monitoring performance.

The essence of Corporate Governance lies in promoting and maintaining integrity, transparency and
accountability in the management’s higher echelons.

At CSIL good governance practices forms part of business strategy which includes, inter alia, focus on long
term value creation and protecting stakeholders interests by applying proper care, skill and diligence to
business decisions. The Company has established systems, procedures and policies to ensure that its Board of
Directors is well informed and well equipped to discharge its overall responsibilities and provide the
Management with the strategic direction catering to exigency of long term shareholders value. Its initiatives
towards adhering to highest standards of governance include self governance, professionalization of the
Board, fair and transparent processes and reporting systems and going beyond the mandated Corporate
Governance requirements of SEBIL

It is believed that the imperative for good Corporate Governance lies not merely in drafting a code of
Corporate Governance but in practicing it.

In accordance with Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015
(“The Listing Regulations™) read with disclosure requirements relating to the Corporate Governance Report
contained in Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015, the details of
compliance by the Company with the norms on Corporate Governance are as under:

MPANY’S PHIL PHY ON CODE OF ERNANCE

Chandi Steel Industries Limited (the Company) believes in and adheres to good corporate governance
practices, implements policies and guidelines, communicates and trains all its stakeholders to develop a
culture of compliance at every level of the organization. The Company believes that the governance process
must aim at managing the affairs without undue restraints for efficient conduct of its business, so as to meet
the aspirations of shareholders, employees and society at large. The Company’s philosophy is aimed at
assisting the management of the Company in the efficient conduct of the business and in meeting its
obligations to all its stakeholders.

The Company’s governance framework is based on the following principles:

* Appropriate composition and size of the Board, with each member bringing in expertise in their respective
domains;

* Availability of information to the members of the Board and Board Committees to enable them to discharge
their fiduciary duties;

* Timely disclosure of material operational and financial information to the stakeholders;

» Systems and processes in place for internal control; and

* Proper business conduct by the Board, Senior Management and Employees.

* Transparency in the functioning and practices of the Board.

* Equitable treatment and rights of the shareholders.

* Maintenance of ethical culture within and outside the organization
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2 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (“the Board™) is responsible for and committed to sound principles of Corporate
Governance in the Company. The Board plays a crucial role in overseeing how the management serves the
short and long term interests of sharcholders and other stakeholders. This belief is reflected in our governance
practices, under which we strive to maintain an effective, informed and independent Board. We keep our
governance practices under continuous review and benchmark ourselves to best practices across the globe.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted under the Chairmanship of Shri Devendra Prasad
Jajodia, a Promoter Executive Director. Regulation 17(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 mandates that where the Chairperson of the board is not a regular Non-
Executive Director, at least half of the board shall comprise of Independent Directors.

e  Composition and Category of Directors

As on 31* March, 2021, the Board consists of 5 directors, comprising of?

e | Promoter Executive Director
e | Professional Executive Director and
¢ 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors

The detailed composition of the Board as on 31* March, 2021 is tabled below:

Name of Directors Category
Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia Promoter Executive Director (Chairman & Managing Director)
Shri Susanta Sarkar Professional Executive Director
Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary | Non-Executive Independent Director
Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit Non-Executive Independent Director
Smt. Rakhi Bajoria Non-Executive Independent Director

During the year, Ms. Swati Agarwal (DIN: 07158355) has resigned from the directorship of the Company
(Category: Non-Executive Independent Director) of the Company w.e.f 30" June, 2020 due to pre-occupation
of work. It has been confirmed by Ms. Agarwal that there is no other material reason for resignation other
than that provided by him.

Pursuant to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2020, Smt.
Rakhi Bajoria (DIN: 07161473) has been appointed as the Non-Executive Independent Director for a period
of 5 years w.e.f 30th June, 2020.

Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing
Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Act along with rules framed thereunder. In terms of Regulation
25(8) of the Listing Regulations, they have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation
which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their
duties. Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors has
confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing
Regulations and that they are independent of the management.

None of the Independent Directors of the Company participate in the day-to-day functioning of the Company
nor do they engage in any business dealing or other relationships with the group (other than in situations
permitted by the applicable regulations) in order to act in the best interest of the stakeholders with
independent decisions.
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Appointment Letter of the present Independent Directors setting out their terms and conditions, roles,
functions, duties and responsibility of appointment as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been
hosted on the Company’s Website www.chandisteel.com in adherence to Regulation 46(2) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

As per declarations received by the Company, none of the independent directors/non-promoter directors are
related to each other or to the promoters.

= Particulars of attendance of each Director at Board Meetings and last Annual General Meeting

The Notice along with the Agenda for each meeting along with Explanatory Notes were communicated to the
Board of Directors, Committee Members and Shareholders in advance as per the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013, Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards (SS1 & SS2) issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

During the financial year 2020-21, 9 (Nine) meetings of the Board were held viz., 25 May, 2020; 30™ June,
2020; 29™ August, 2020; 19™ October, 2020; 12" November, 2020; 19" December, 2020; 28" January, 2021;
23" February, 2021 and 1* March, 2021. The maximum time gap between two consecutive board meetings
did not exceed one hundred and twenty days and the necessary quorum was present at all the meetings.

The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings during the financial year 2020-21 and at the last
Annual General Meeting held on 30™ September, 2020 are listed below:

No. of Board

Name of Directors Meetings attended | Whether attended last AGM
Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia 9 Yes

Shri Susanta Sarkar 9 Yes

Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary 9 Yes

Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit 9 Yes

Ms. Swati Agarwal 1 No

Ms. Rakhi Bajoria 8 Yes

Ms. Seema Chowdhury, Company Secretary of the Company was present at all meetings of the Board of
Directors held during the financial year 2020-21 and at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company.

During Financial year 2020-21, information as mentioned in Part A of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations
has been placed before the Board for its consideration.

e Particulars of Number of other Directorship and Committee Membership/Chairmanship

The Number of directorship and committee membership/chairmanship held by each director in other
companies as on 31st March, 2021 is tabled below:
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Number of directorship Number of committee position List of Directorship
held in other companies | held in Public Limited Companies held in other listed
wk companies and
Name of Directors Category of
Directorship
Public Others** Committee Committee
Limite.d Membership(s) | Chairmanship(s)
Companies*
Shri Devendra | 1 2 - - -
Prasad Jajodia
Shri Susanta | - - - - -
Sarkar
Shri Ashok | - - - - -
Kumar Choudhary
Shri Sumit Kumar 1 - - 1 -
Rakshit
Ms. Rakhi Bajoria 1 - 1 - Jai Balaji Industries
Limited- Independent
Director

*It does not include directorship in foreign companies, companies registered under Section 8 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and private limited companies but includes alternate directorships in public limited
companies (excluding Chandi Steel Industries Limited).

**Directorship of any private limited companies (including alternate directorship), foreign companies and
companies under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been considered.
***Membership(s)/Chairmanship(s) of only the Audit Committee and Stakeholders™ Relationship Committee
in all Public Limited Companies (excluding Chandi Steel Industries Limited) have been considered.

Pursuant to Regulation 17A of the Listing Regulations, none of the directors serve as a director in more than
seven listed entities. Further, none of the Independent Directors of the Company serves in more than seven
listed entities and none of the whole-time directors of the Company serves as an independent director in more
than three listed entities.

None of the directors serve as a member in more than ten committees or act as a chairperson of more than
five committees across all the listed entities in which they serve as a director pursuant to Regulation 26 of the
Listing Regulations.

Directors informed the Company whenever there is change in directorship or committee membership in any
other company in which he is director or committee member. The Board duly took note of the declaration
received from the Director in the Board Meetings. All members of the Board and senior management affirm
compliance with the code of conduct of board of directors and senior management on annual basis. Further,
senior management have made disclosures to the board of directors relating to all material, financial and
commercial transactions, where they have personal interest that may have a potential conflict with the interest
of the listed entity at large, if any.

The facts and figures as stated above are based on the declarations received from the directors for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2021.
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List of Core Skills / Expertise / Competencies of directors

A chart or matrix setting out the list of core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Board of
Directors as required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s) for it to function effectively are as under

SL. | Attributes
No.

Description

(1) | Industry

(a) Experience in and knowledge of the industry in which the Company operates
(b) Experience and knowledge of broader industry environment and business
planning

(2) | Strategy and
Planning

Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic choices and experience in guiding and
leading management teams to make decisions in
uncertain environments.

(3) | Professional

Expertise in professional areas such as Technical, Accounting,
Finance, Legal, Human Resources, Marketing, etc.

(4) | Governance

Experience in developing governance practices, serving the best interests of all
stakeholders, maintaining board and management accountability, building long-
term effective stakeholder

engagements and driving corporate ethics and values.

(5) | Behavioural

Knowledge and skills to function well as team members, effective decision
making processes, integrity, effective communication,
innovative thinking.

Director Attributes
Industry Strategy Professional Governance Behavioural
and
Planning
Shri Devendra Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Prasad Jajodia
Shri Susanta Sarkar Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Shri Ashok Kumar Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Choudhary
Shri Sumit Kumar Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Rakshit
Ms. Rakhi Bajoria - Yes Yes Yes Yes

o Performance Evaluation of Board

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(10), 19(4) and Part D of Schedule
II of the Listing Regulations, a Board Evaluation Policy has been framed and approved by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) and by the Board.

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees, and
individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations.
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The performance of the board was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the
basis of criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information
and functioning, etc.

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee
members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings,
etc.

The above criteria are based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017.

The performance of non-independent directors, the board as a whole and the Chairman of the Company were
evaluated by the Independent Directors, taking into account the views of executive directors and non
executive directors.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of individual
directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the board and committee
meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs
in meetings, etc.

The performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the board of directors excluding the ones
whose evaluation was to be carried out including the fulfillment of the independence criteria as specified in

the Listing Regulations and independence of independent directors from the management.

The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

e Separate Meeting of Independent Director

During the year 2020-21, as per requirement of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
25(3) of the Listing Regulations, a separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 1st March, 2021
without the presence of non-independent directors and members of the management. The meeting was
conducted by Independent Directors to:

+¢ Evaluate the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole.

¢ Evaluate the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the
Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

>

*.
*

Evaluate the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the Management and the
Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

e Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors

In Compliance with Regulation 25(7) of the Listing Regulations, the Company has conducted familiarisation
cum induction programme for the independent directors on 1% March, 2021.

The induction programme included one-to-one interactive sessions with the Managing Director. The
Independent Directors were made aware and updated on the various operations carried on by the Company
during the year and about the recent amendments notified by MCA. The Independent Directors were
informed and familiarized regarding the creation and maintenance of databank and the amended rules thereof
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notified by MCA on 22nd October, 2019 with the declaration of compliances required for their registration as
Independent Directors. Apart from the induction programme, the Company also update the Independent
Directors at the Board/Committee meetings to familiarise the Directors with the Company’s strategy, their
rights and responsibilities , business performance, operations, finance, risk management framework, human
resources and other related matters.

The details on the Company's Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors can be accessed at the
website of the Company i.e www.chandisteel.com.

e Independent director databank registration

The IDs have in terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies(Appointment &
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, confirmed that they have enrolled themselves in the Independent
Director’s Databank maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

= Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors

None of the Non-executive Directors held shares as on 31.03.2021.

The Company has not issued any convertible instruments during the year 2020-21.
3 BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board Committees are set up by the Board and are governed by its terms of reference which exhibit the
scope, composition, tenure, functioning and reporting parameters. The Board Committees play a vital role in
improving Board effectiveness in areas where more focused and extensive discussions are required. Some of
the Board functions are performed through specially constituted Board Committees comprising of Executive
and Non-Executive/Independent Directors. Board Committees ensure focused discussion and expedient
resolution of diverse matters.

As on 31st March, 2021, the Company had following committees - Audit Committee, Nomination &
Remuneration Committee (formerly known as Remuneration Committee), Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee (formerly known as Share Transfer Cum Investors’ Grievance Committee), Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee and Internal Complaints Committee. Composition of various committees of the
Board of Directors is also hosted on the website www.chandisteel.com.

The Committees operate under the direct supervision of the Board, and Chairpersons of the respective
committees report to the Board about the deliberations and decisions taken by the Committees. The
recommendations of the committees are submitted to the Board for approval.

During the year under review, all recommendations of the Committees were approved by the Board. The
minutes of the meetings of all Committees of the Board are placed before the Board for noting. The
Chairperson of the Audit Committees, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee were present at the previous Annual General Meeting.

The role, composition and terms of reference of all committees including the number of meetings held during
the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 and the related attendance are as follows:
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¢ AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted an Audit Committee in compliance with Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations which is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the
Company’s internal controls and financial reporting process.

Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include the role as stipulated and review of information as laid
in Part C of Schedule II of Listing Regulations. The brief description of the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee in line with the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), 2015 are as follows:

*  Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

*  Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of the auditors of the
company;

*  Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

*  Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before
submission to the board for approval with particular reference to:

a) matters required to be included in the directors’ responsibility statement to be included in the Board’ s
Report in terms of Clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b) changes if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same

¢) major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
d) significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e) compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f)  disclosure of any related party transaction;

g) modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

*  Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval;

*  Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring
agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

*  Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process;
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Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the
internal control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the board;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism,;

Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and
background, etc. of the candidate;

Carrying out any other functions as mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.
Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the
subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower
including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this
provision.
To consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger,
amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders.

In addition, the Audit Committee also mandatorily reviews the following:

Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operation;

Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by the
management,

Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors;

Internal Audit Reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to
review by the audit committee.

Statement of deviations:

a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted

to the stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1)

b) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7).

The Audit Committee have authority to investigate any activity within its terms of reference, seek information
from any employee, obtain outside legal or professional advice and secure attendance of outsiders with
relevant expertise, if it considers necessary. The scope of activity of the Committee is also in consonance with
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the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

= Composition of the Committee

As on 31* March, 2021, the Audit Committee comprises of 3 Directors, Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit, Non-
Executive Independent Director (Chairman), Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia, Executive Promoter Director and
Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary, Non-Executive Independent Director.

Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit has been inducted as member and designated as the Chairman of the committee
due to resignation tendered by Smt. Swati Agarwal w.e.f 30.06.2020.

Smt. Seema Chowdhury, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the committee. All the members of the
Committee are financially literate and have knowledge on accounting or financial management.

The Composition of the Committee is hosted on the website of the Company i.e www.chandisteel.com.

= Meetings of the Audit Committee and Attendance of the Members at the meetings

During the financial year 2020-21, 4 (Four) meetings of the Audit Committee were held viz., 30th June, 2020;
29th August, 2020; 12th November, 2020, and 28th January, 2021. The maximum time gap between two
consecutive audit committee meetings did not exceed 120 days. The necessary quorum was present at all the
meetings.

Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit, Chairman of the Committee, Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia and Shri Ashok
Kumar Choudhary attended all the meetings during the year under review.

Shri Tushar Kanti Sarkar, Chief Financial Officer of the Company was invited at the meetings of the
Committee and he attended all the meetings. Further, the Audit Committee invites, as and when it considers
appropriate, the statutory auditors and the internal auditors to be present at the meetings of the Committee.
The representatives of the Cost Auditor attend the Audit Committee meeting when the Cost Audit Report is
tabled for discussion.

Smt. Seema Chowdhury, the Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit, the Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the 42nd Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on 30th September, 2020.

% NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted pursuant to the provisions of
Regulations 19 read with Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference include matters included in Section 178 (2) to (4) of Companies Act, 2013 read with
Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations. The brief terms of reference of the Committee include the
following:
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*  Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors,
key managerial personnel and other employees;

*  Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and Board of directors;

*  Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

*  Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in Senior
Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board of directors their
appointment and removal.

*  Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the
report of performance evaluation of independent director.

* To recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

*  To ensure that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain
and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

*  To ensure that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks.

*  To ensure that Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves
a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

*  To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and/or enforced by any
statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable;

= Composition of the Committee

As on 31* March, 2021, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of 3 Directors, Smt. Rakhi
Bajoria, Non-Executive Independent Director (Chairman), Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary, Non-Executive
Independent Director and Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit, Non-Executive Independent Director.

Smt. Rakhi Bajoria has been inducted as member and designated as the Chairman of the committee due to
resignation tendered by Smt. Swati Agarwal w.e.f 30.06.2020.

The performance of Independent Directors are evaluated on various parameters but not limited to —
attendance, preparedness for meetings, updation on developments, participation, engaging with management,

ensuring integrity of financial statements and internal control, ensuring risk management and mitigation etc.

The Composition of the Committee is hosted on the website of the Company i.e www.chandisteel.com

= Meetings of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Attendance of the Members at the
meetings

During the financial year 2020-21, 3 (Three) meeting of the committee were held viz., 30" June, 2020; 29"
August, 2020 and 1* March, 2021.

Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit and Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary have attended all the meetings held during the
year.

During the year Smt Swati Agarwal has attended one meeting i.e on 30.06.2020 and Smt Rakhi Bajoria has
attended the other two meetings as the Chairman of the Committee.
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Smt. Rakhi Bajoria, the Chairman of the Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting to
answer the queries of the shareholders.

¢ Remuneration Policy

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee framed a policy on
remuneration of Directors and Senior Management Employees. The Company’s remuneration policy is
directed towards rewarding performance based on periodic review of the achievements. The remuneration
policy has been disclosed in the Annual Report as “Annexure-B” to the Directors Reports.

= Criteria of making payments:

Overall remuneration paid to the Board, Key Managerial Personnel’s and other Senior Management
employees are reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate them aligned to the requirements of the
Company (taking into consideration the challenges faced by the Company and its future growth imperatives).
The remuneration package of the Executive Directors is determined by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee in accordance with the Remuneration policy of the Company. The recommendations of the
Committee are considered and approved by the Board, subject to the approval of the members of the
Company.

> Executive Directors:

The Company pays remuneration by way of salary as a fixed component. As on 31* March, 2021, the Board
comprises of 2 executive directors i.e, Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia, Managing Director and Shri Susanta
Sarkar, Executive Director of the Company. The remuneration paid to Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia is
governed by terms and condition of appointment mentioned in the agreement of Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia
which includes his tenure for 5 years as effective from 1% April, 2018.

During the year 2020-21, the remuneration of Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia was increased to Rs. 7,00,000/-
p.m. pursuant to the authority granted to the Board by the members of the Company at its Annual General
Meeting held on 27th September, 2018 and the said remuneration is within the limits as specified under
Section 197 read with Part B of Part II of Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013.

(Rs.)
Name of the Directors Salary Benefits / Allowances, Total
(per annum) etc.
(fixed component)
Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia 23,50,000 Nil 23,50,000
Shri Susanta Sarkar 2,81,100 Nil 2,81,100
Total 26,31,100 Nil 26,31,100

The Company does not have any scheme for grant of Stock Options to its Directors, Managing Directors or
other employees.

> Non-Executive Directors:

The Non-Executive Directors have waived-off their sitting fees. Therefore, no sitting fee for participation in
the Board Meeting/Committee meeting or any commission is paid by the Company to the Non-executive
Directors.
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= All Pecuniary Relationship or Transaction of the Non-executive Directors

The Non-executives Independent Directors of the Company does not have any material pecuniary
relationships or transactions with the Company or its directors or senior management other than in the
ordinary course of business. The Non-Executive Directors do not hold any shares or convertible instruments
of the Company as on 31st March, 2021.

¢ STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
SHARE TRANSFER CUM INVESTORS’ GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE)

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board
in terms of the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder read
with Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee looks into various
aspects of interest of shareholders, debenture holders and other security holders.

Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference include matters included in Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Part D of
Schedule II of the Listing Regulations. The brief terms of reference of the Committee include the following:

*  Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of
new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

*  Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

*  Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services
being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

*  Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices
by the shareholders of the company.

*  To review and note all matters relating to the registration of transfer and transmission of shares and
debentures, transposition of shares, sub-division of shares, issue of duplicate share certificates or
allotment letters and certificates for debentures in lieu of those lost/misplaced;

*

To review dematerialisation and rematerialisation of the shares of the Company;
*  To comply with all such directions of SEBI, Stock Exchanges, Ministry of Corporate Affairs & other
regulatory bodies w.r.t. shareholders’/investors’ rights and market regulations, from time to time.

e Composition of the Committee
As on 31st March, 2021, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of 3 Directors, Smt. Rakhi
Bajoria, Non-Executive Independent Director (Chairman), Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia, Promoter Executive

Director and Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit, Non-Executive Independent Director.

Smt. Rakhi Bajoria has been inducted as member and designated as the Chairman of the committee due to
resignation tendered by Smt. Swati Agarwal w.e.f 30.06.2020.

Smt. Seema Chowdhury, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company. The Company
Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.
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= Meetings of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and Attendance of the Members at the
meetings

During the financial year 2020-21, 4 (Four) meetings of the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee were held
viz., 30™ June,2020; 29™ August, 2020; 12" November, 2020 and 28" January, 2021.

Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia and Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit have attended all the 4 meetings held during the
year.

During the year Smt Swati Agarwal has attended one meeting i.e on 30.06.2020 and Smt Rakhi Bajoria has
attended the other three meetings as the Chairman of the Committee.

The Company Secretary also attended all Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings held during the
year.

e The details of investor complaints received, pending or solved during the year

Number of shareholders complaints pending as on 1* April, 2020 : NIL
Number of shareholders complaints received during the year ended 31* : NIL
March, 2021
Number of shareholders complaints not solved to the satisfaction of the : NIL
Shareholders
Number of shareholders complaints pending as on 31* March, 2021 : NIL

It is confirmed that there was no request for registration of share transfers/ transmission lying pending as on
31st March, 2021 and that all request for issue of new certificates, sub-division or consolidation of
shareholding, etc, received up to 31st March, 2021 have been processed. The Company has an efficient
system in place to record and process all requests for dematerialization and re-materialization of shares in the
Company through National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)/ Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (CDSL).

Status of Investor Complaints was also placed before the Board and was filed with the Stock Exchanges
wherein the equity shares of the Company are listed pursuant to Regulation 13 of the Listing Regulations.

% CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee pursuant to the provisions of
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014.

= Terms of reference of the committee

*  To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate
the activities to be undertaken by the Company in areas or subject as specified in Schedule VII of the
companies Act, 2013;

*  To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on such activities; and

*  To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time.

As per the requirements of section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the company is required to spend at
least two percent of its average net profits made during the three immediately preceding financial years
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towards CSR Activities.

In view of the above, the Company had been looking for proper avenues to deploy the required funds for its
CSR activity. During the financial year 2020-21, the Company was supposed to spend Rs. 19,01,000/- to
fulfill its CSR obligations but it has actually spent Rs. 19,25,000 through Ram Kumar Jajodia Trust,
Registration No. 1V-1902-00439/2020, a Registered Public Trust with Section 12A and Section 80G
registrations under the Income Tax Act, 1961 for compliance with the statutory requirements of CSR
provisions in letter and spirit. The Trust is actively involved in undertaking the rural development projects in
Salasar (Rajasthan).

However, CSR and Sustainable Development has always been one of the leading priorities of the Company
and the Company continues to undertake a wide range of CSR activities to contribute towards welfare and
betterment of the society. Therefore, as a good corporate practice and for better governance, the Company
shall continue to strive towards spending for CSR the way it has been doing in past years.

The CSR policy of the Company is hosted on the website of the Company i.e. “www.chandisteel.com”.

During the financial year under review 2(two) meetings of the members of the Committee were held viz., on
31st July, 2020 and on 1st March, 2021.

e Composition of the Committee and Attendance of the Members at the meetings

Name of the Members Category No. of meetings
Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit Independent Non-Executive 2
(Chairman) Director

Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia Executive Director 2
Smt. Rakhi Bajoria * Independent Non-Executive 2

*Smt. Swati Agarwal has resigned w.e.f 30" June, 2020 and Smt. Rakhi Bajoria has been appointed
as the member of the Committee.

+ Internal Complaints Committee

In pursuance of the Section 4 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder, the Board of directors of the Company formulated the
Internal Complaints Committee. Further, a policy on prevention of sexual harassment of women at the
workplace was duly approved and adopted by the Company and is available on the website of the Company.
The basic procedure followed in the Committee is complying with the natural justice and fair play to the
aggrieved person and providing protection to women at workplace.

The Committee comprised of 4(Four) members as on 31st March, 2021, out of which the Chairman of the
Committee is the Presiding Officer. Details of members and their attendance at the meeting held are stated
hereunder:

Name of the Members Category No. of meetings attended
Smt. Seema Chowdhury Presiding Officer 1
Smt. Premlata Soni Outside member 1
Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit Member 1
Shri Tushar Kanti Sarkar Member 1
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During the financial year under review a meeting of the members of the Committee was held on 28" January,
2021 for noting details of the complaints received/resolved by the Committee during the year and all the
members attended the meeting.

In line with the requirements of Section 21 of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, further details of Complaints
received/resolved by the Committee during the year is stated hereunder:

No. of Complaints of Sexual Harassment received during the : NIL
No. of Complaints disposed off during the year
No. of cases pending for more than 90 days

No. of Complaints pending as on end of the financial year
No. of workshops or awareness programme against sexual

harassment carried out

Nature of action taken by the employer

4 GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

¢ Annual General Meeting (AGM)

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL

The location, date and time of the last three Annual General Meeting are as follows:

Financial Day & Date Time Location

Year

2019-2020 Wednesday, 30t 1:00 P.M Registered Office: 3, Bentinck Street, Kolkata —
September, 2020 700 001 (through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or

Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”)

2018-19 Thursday, 26" 11:00 A.M. | Registered Office: 3, Bentinck Street, Kolkata —|
September, 2019 700 001

2017-18 Thursday, 27" 11:00 A.M. | Registered Office: 3, Bentinck Street, Kolkata —
September, 2018. 700 001

¢ Special Resolutions passed in the previous 3 Annual General Meetings

The following Special Resolutions were taken up in the last three AGMs and were passed with requisite

majority.

2019-2020 i. Reappointment of Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary (DIN: 07603658) as Independent Director
of the Company for a period of 5( Five) years w.e.f 1 September, 2021.

ii. Reappointment of Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit (DIN: 07603642) as Independent Director of

the Company for a period of 5( Five) years w.e.f 1* September, 2021.

2018-19 No special resolution was passed in this AGM.

2017-18 i. Reappointment of Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia (DIN: 00045166) as Managing Director of
the Company for a period of 5 (five) years w.e.f 1" April, 2018 to 31° March, 2023.
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¢ Special Resolution passed through postal ballot during financial year 2020-21

No special resolution was passed through the exercise of postal ballot during the financial year under review.
Further, no special resolution has been proposed to be passed vide postal ballot at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

¢ Extra-ordinary General Meeting

No special resolution was passed through Extra-Ordinary General Meeting during the last three years under
review.

5 DISCLOSURES

Related Party Disclosures

All material transactions entered into with related parties as defined under the Act and Regulation 23 of
the Listing Regulations during the financial year were in ordinary course of business. These have been
approved by the Audit Committee. The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which
has been uploaded on the Company’s website www.chandisteel.com.

The Company has entered into certain material related party transactions with its related parties which are
continuing beyond 31st March, 2021 and they do not have any potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large. Further, approval of the members has been taken at the 42nd Annual General Meeting
of the Company held on 30th September, 2020. Considering the fact that the Company frequently enters
into transactions with its related parties and such transactions are repetitive in nature, the Company has at
the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 12th February,2020 obtained omnibus approval of the
Committee for all related party transactions subject to their value not exceeding Rs.1 (One) crore per
transaction valid upto a period of 1 (One) year from the date of such approval pursuant to Regulation 23 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Company at its
meeting held on 28th January, 2021 has obtained a fresh approval which shall be valid for a period of 1
(one) year pursuant to Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. A Statement of such transactions is periodically placed before the audit committee for
review. Also, all related party transactions are placed before the audit committee for approval. Further,
approval from the members has been taken at the previous Annual General meeting for such transactions.

Further, the transactions entered into by the Company were on arms length pricing basis and in the
ordinary course of business with no intention to defraud the creditors and shareholders. The related party
transactions were entered into based on various business emergencies such as legal requirements, liquidity,
long-term strategy and capital resources, etc.

The Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS 24) by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, have
been followed while preparation of the financial statements. A comprehensive list of all related party
transactions entered into by the Company forms a part of Note No. 29 to the financial statements in the
Annual Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a Related Party Transaction Policy in place, pursuant
to the requirements of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder and
Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations. The Policy is available on the website of the company viz.
“www.chandisteel.com”
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= Capital Market Disclosures

There have been no instances of non-compliances by the Company on any matter related to capital
markets, during the last three years and thus no penalty and/or strictures are imposed on the Company by
any Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority during last 3 years.

= Details of non-compliance

There was no non-compliance of any of the provision applicable to the Company. No penalties or
strictures have been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange, Board or any Statutory Authority for
non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets.

= Forfeiture of Partly Paid-up Equity Shares of the Company

Forfeiture of partly paid up Equity shares of the Company on which total amount of Rs.37,500/-remains
unpaid. The details of which are as follows:

The Company has issued the final demand cum forfeiture notice on 03-04-2021 to the partly paid equity
shareholders of the Company demanding the payment of outstanding money towards the partly paid
Equity Shares allotted to them. The notice specified the fact that on failure to pay the outstanding money
within one month of the notice, their shares will be liable to be forfeited.

Still the shareholders have not paid the allotment money on the partly paid equity shares allotted to them.
Considering the stated facts, the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 28" June,
2021. Approved the forfeiture of partly paid Equity shares on which outstanding allotment money are still
unpaid.

= Details of Establishment of Vigil Mechanism, Whistleblower Policy and affirmation that no
personnel has been denied access to the audit committee

As per requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has established a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle
Blower Policy for directors and employees to enable directors and employees to report unethical
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct. The Policy provides
adequate safeguards against victimisation of Director(s)/ Employee(s) and direct access to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.

The Company hereby affirms that no Director/ employee have been denied access to the Chairman and
that no complaints were received during the year. The Whistle Blower Policy has been disclosed on the
Company’s website www.chandisteel.com.

= Details of Utilization of Funds Raised Through Preferential Allotment or Qualified Institutions
Placement As Specified Under Regulation 32 (7A)

The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement
during the year under review. Hence, the disclosure of details of utilization of funds raised through
preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified under regulation 32 (7A) of the
Listing Regulations is not applicable.

= List of all Credit ratings obtained- Not applicable
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= A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of the
company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of
companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

A certificate has been received from Priti Todi, a Practising Company Secretary, that none of the Directors
on the Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or
any such statutory authority.

The Certificate of Company Secretary in practice is annexed herewith as a part of the report.

= Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity to the statutory auditor and all entities in the
network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part.

Details relating to fees paid to the Statutory Auditors are given in Note 24 of the Financial Statements.
= Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the 'Act’) read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, as amended from time to time.

The financial statements of the Company have been audited by M/s. B. Y. Jatania & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Statutory Auditor of the Company.

= Code of Conduct

The Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct for all the Board Members (incorporating,
inter-alia, duties of Independent Directors) and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The Code
aims at ensuring consistent standards of conduct and ethical business practices across the Company. The
Company has received confirmations from all concerned regarding their adherence to the said Code. The
Code has been hosted on the Company’s website “www.chandisteel.com”.

Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company confirmed
compliance with the Code by all members of the Board and the Senior Management personnel and forms
part of this Annual Report.

= Insider Trading

In order to regulate trading in securities of the Company by the Directors and designated employees, your
Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for trading in listed or proposed to be listed securities of the
Company. Insider Trading Code prevents misuse of unpublished price sensitive information and it also
provides for periodical disclosures and obtaining pre-clearance for trading in securities of your Company
by the Directors, Designated Employees and Connected Persons of your Company. Pursuant to SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and amendments thereto, the Company has adopted
Policy for Legitimate purposes forming part of the Company's Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information as effective from 1st April, 2019. This Code is
displayed on the Company’s website viz “www.chandisteel.com”

The Company follows highest standards of transparency and fairness in dealing with all stakeholders and
ensures that no insider shall use his or her position with or without the knowledge of the Company to gain
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personal benefit or to provide benefit to any third party. The policy adopted on this by the Company is
available on the website of the Company viz “www.chandisteel.com”

= Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, 2015, a detailed report on Management Discussion
and Analysis forms a part of Directors Report.

= Proceeds from public issues, rights issues, preferential issues, etc.

The Company has not raised any money from public issues, rights issues, preferential issues, etc. during
the financial year 2020-21.

= Subsidiary Companies
The Company does not have any subsidiaries as on 31st March, 2021.
= CEO and CFO Certification

The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer certification is provided in this Annual report in
terms of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, 2015 as per the format specified in Part B of
Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia, Managing Director and Shri Tushar Kanti Sarkar, Chief Financial Officer
of the Company have also given quarterly certificate on financial results while placing the financial results
before the Board in terms of Regulation 33(2) of the Listing Regulations.

= Risk Management

The Company’s risk management framework identifies and evaluates business risks and opportunities.
The Company recognises that these risks need to be managed and mitigated to protect its shareholders and
other stakeholders™ interest, to achieve its business objectives and enable sustainable growth. The risk
frame work is aimed at effectively mitigating the Company’s various business and operational risks,
through strategic actions. Risk management is embedded in our critical business activities, functions and
processes. The risks are reviewed for the change in the nature and extent of the major risks identified since
the last assessment. It also provides control measures for risks and future action plans. The Company has
devised a policy on Risk Management which is hosted on the Company’s Website viz
www.chandisteel.com.

= Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit
The Company has engaged Smt. Premlata Soni, a Practising Company Secretary to carry out the share
capital audit to reconcile the total admitted equity share capital with the National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and
listed equity share capital. The audit report confirms that the total issued/paid-up capital is in agreement
with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialised shares held with
NSDL and CDSL.

= Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance

As required by Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
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2015, the Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance is annexed to the Boards’ Report.
= Details of compliance with mandatory requirements

* The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory requirements as specified in the Listing
Regulations, to the extent these apply, extend and possible to the Company.

* The Company has also adopted a Policy on Determination of Materiality of events to be disclosed with the
Stock Exchange which is available on the website of the Company_www.chandisteel.com pursuant to
Regulation 30 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

* The Company has adopted a Policy for Preservation of Documents approved by the Board of Directors in
relation to preservation of documents which shall be permanent in nature and preservation of documents
with preservation period of not less than 8 years of the completion of the relevant transfers as per
Regulation 9 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Adoption Of Non-Mandatory Requirement or Discretionary Requirements

* Shareholder rights

The Quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company as reviewed by the Audit Committee
and then approved by the Board of Directors and all the significant events of the Company were submitted to
the Stock Exchanges within the prescribed time and updated on the website of the Company viz.
“www.chandisteel.com”. These information are not sent to each shareholder personally.

* Modified opinion(s) in Audit Report
The Company’s Financial Statement does not contain any audit qualifications.
* Reporting of Internal Auditor

The Internal Auditor reports directly/ indirectly to the Audit Committee.

= Other Compliances

The Board of Directors quarterly reviews the compliances and laws as applicable to the Company. They also
have in place plans for orderly succession for appointment to the Board of Directors and Senior Management.
=  Submission of Corporate Governance Report

The Corporate Governance Report pursuant to Regulation 27 of the Listing Regulations for each quarter for
the financial year 2020-21 was duly submitted to the Stock Exchanges within the stipulated time period.

6 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

= Quarterly Financial Results

Prior intimation of Board Meetings in which Unaudited/ Audited Financial Results of the Company was
considered, approved and were intimated to the Stock Exchange [The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited
(CSE)] and also disseminated on the website of the Company at “www.chandisteel.com”. The aforesaid
Financial Results are immediately intimated to the Stock Exchange after the same is approved at the Board
Meeting.
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= Newspapers wherein results are normally published

Intimation of Board Meetings and General Meetings, financial results and other publications of the Company
are published in “The Financial Express”, (English Newspaper) and “Ek Din” (Vernacular Newspaper) as per
Regulation 47 of the Listing Regulations and other applicable provisions.

= Website

Pursuant to Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, Company’s website “www.chandisteel.com” contains a
separate dedicated section “Investor Relations” which is a comprehensive reference containing the up-to-date
financial results, annual reports, shareholding patterns, Company’s policies, material disclosures, official
news releases, presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts, if any and other general
information about the Company.

= Presentation made to Institutional Investors or to the Analyst

The presentations, if any, made to institutional investors and analysts at investors meet from time to time are
also posted on the Company’s website.

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES):

SCORES is a web-based complaint redress system where the investor grievances received are handled. The
pertinent features include: Centralized database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports
(ATRs) by concerned companies and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and its
current status.

Contact information of the designated official responsible for assisting and handling Investor Complaints is
detailed hereunder :

The Company Secretary

Chandi Steel Industries

Limited

3, Bentinck Street,

Kolkata - 700 001

Phone No.: (91)(33) 2248 9808

Fax: (91)(33) 2243 0021

E-mail: chandisteelindustries@gmail.com

7 GENERAL SHAREHOILDER INFORMATION

43" Annual General Meeting Day/Date : Thursday, 30™ September, 2021
Time : 01:00 p.m.

Through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other
Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”)
The Register of Members and Share Transfer
Date of book closure Book shall remain closed from Friday, 24™
September, 2021 to Thursday, 30th September,
2021.(both days inclusive)
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Financial calendar (tentative schedule) for
the year 2021-2022

1°* April, 2021 to 31* March, 2022

The probable dates for submission of the Financial
Results for the financial year 2021-2022:

1** Quarter Results On or before 14"
Aug, 2021
2" Quarter Results On or before 14"
Nov, 2021
3" Quarter Results On or before 14"
Feb, 2022
Annual Results On or before 30"
May, 2022
Date of Dividend payment N.A.
Listing on stock exchanges The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited 7,
Lyons Range

Kolkata — 700 001

The Listing Fees as applicable have been paid

Identification Number (ISIN) in NSDL and
CDSL

Scrip code 10013341
Depositories National Securities Depository Limited
Trade world, 4™ Floor, ,,A“ Wing Kamala
Mills Compound
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel
Mumbai — 400 013
Central Depository Services (India) Limited 25"
Floor, Marathon Futurex,
N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East),
Mumbai — 400 013
Annual Custodial Fees pertaining to year 2020- 21
has been duly paid.
Demat International Security

INE204G01017

Corporate Identification Number (CIN)

L13100WB1995PLC031670

= Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd
Corporate Office: 23 R.N Mukherjee Road,
5" Floor Kolkata - 700 001

Phone No.: (91) (33) 2243 5029

E-mail: mdpldc@yahoo.com
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Market price data

The shares of the Company are listed on the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and the same are not
traded.

Share transfer system

In terms of the Listing Regulations, effective from 1st April, 2019, securities of listed companies can only be
transferred in dematerialised form except or where the claim is lodged for transmission or transposition of
shares or where the transfer deed(s) was lodged prior 1st April, 2019 and returned due to deficiency in the
document.

98.02% of the equity shares of the Company are in dematerialised form. Transfer of shares held in electronic
mode are processed by the depositories. Requests for Transfer/ Transmission of shares held in physical form
can be lodged with the Company“s Registrar and Share Transfer agents of the Company for share transfers,
splits, issue of duplicate share certificates, rematerialisation and dematerialisation etc. Share transfers are
processed and share certificates duly endorsed are delivered within a period of fifteen days from the date of
receipt of such requests subject to the documents being valid and complete in all respects. The summary of
investor complaints, demat/remat/corporate action and transfer/transmission of shares are placed before the
Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee of the Company periodically.

The Company obtains from a Company Secretary in practice, a half yearly certificate of compliance with the
share transfer formalities as required under Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations, and files the same
with the stock exchanges. Also, pursuant to Regulation 76 of SEBI (Depositories and Participants)
Regulations, 2018, certification is issued by a Company Secretary in practice regarding timely
dematerialisation of the shares of the Company.

= Categories Of Shareholders as on 31* March, 2021

No. of No. of shares | 252
1| Category Sl(l)ar(')eholders heold0 e Yoage of
A+B+C
A | Promoter and Promoter Group Holding
Indian 9 36,58,700 34.71
Foreign Nil NIL NIL
Total Promoter Shareholding (A) 9 36,58,700 34.71
Public Holding
B Institutions Nil Nil Nil
Non-Institutions 652 68,76,300 65.29
Total Public Shareholding (B) 652 68,76,300 65.29
C Shares held by Custodian & against
which Depository receipts have been NIL NIL NIL
issued (C)
Grand Total (A+B+C) 661 1,05,40,000 100




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L13100WB1978PLC031670
ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021

» Distribution of Shareholding as on 31% March, 2021

Range of ordinary shares No of lt)el‘centage No. of Percentage
g y Shareholder (%) to ) (%) to share
held total Shares .
s capital
shareholders

Up to 500 623 942511 147600 1.4004
501 to 1000 8 1.2103 7300 0.0693
5001 to 10000 1 0.1513 6402 0.0607
10001 and above 29 4.3873 10378698 98.4696
Total 661 100.00 10540000 100.00

* Dematerialization Of Shares And Liquidity as on 31° March, 2021

The Shares of the Company are tradable in dematerialized form through both the Depository Systems in
India viz. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL). Requests for dematerialization of shares can be sent directly to the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent at M/s. Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited, 23, R.N Mukherjee Road, 5" Floor, Kolkata- 700
001. As at 31% March, 2021 a total of 1,03,31,800 equity shares of the Company, representing 98.02% of the
Company’s share capital were held in dematerialised form of which 71,38,800 representing 67.73% of the
total paid-up equity share capital were held with NSDL and 31,93,000 representing 30.29 % of the total paid-

up equity share capital with CDSL.

Under the depository system, the International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to the

Company’s shares is INE 204G01017.

Dematerialisation

1.98

= NSDL
m CDSL

Physical
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= Qutstanding GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely
impact on equity

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants/Convertible Instruments in the past and hence as on
31" March, 2021, the Company does not have any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants/Convertible
Instruments.

= Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging activities

The Company does not deal in commodities and accordingly, no hedging activities for the same are carried
out. Therefore, there is no disclosure to offer in terms of SEBI Circular dated November 15, 2018.

= Plant Locations

16, Belur Road, Liluah, Howrah
= Address For Correspondence

The Company Secretary

Chandi Steel Industries Limited 3,
Bentinck Street,

Kolkata - 700 001

Phone No.: (033) 2248 9808

Fax: (033) 2243 0021

E-mail: chandisteelindustries@gmail.com

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
Place: Kolkata Devendra Prasad Jajodia
Date: 10™ August, 2021. Managing Director

(DIN: 00045166)
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Certificate as per Schedule V under Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015

TO WHOMSOEVERIT MAY CONCERN

I, Priti Todi, Partner of Bajaj Todi & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries do hereby certify that none of
the directors on the board of Chandi Steel Industries Limited (CIN:L13100WB1978PLC031670) have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or from continuing as directors of Companies by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India or Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority to the best of my
knowledge.

This certificate is being issued as per Schedule V under Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015.

For Bajaj Todi & Associates

Sd/-
(Priti Todi) Place:Kolkata
Partner Date: 29/06/2021

C.P No: 7270, ACS:14611

UDIN No.: A014611C000543801

DECLARATION

As provided under Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, this is to confirm that a Code of Conduct has been laid down by the Board of Directors of
Chandi Steel Industries Limited, which has been made applicable to all the Directors and the Senior
Management Personnel of the Company.

The Code of Conduct has been affirmed to by all the members of the Board and the Senior Management
Personnel of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

The said Code of Conduct is posted on the website of the Company, namely, www.chandisteel.com.

Sd/-
Place : Kolkata Devendra Prasad Jajodia
Date : 10™ August, 2021 Managing Director

(DIN: 00045166)
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CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION

[Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015]

To,
The Board of Directors
Chandi Steel Industries Limited

We, Devendra Prasad Jajodia, Managing Director and Tushar Kanti Sarkar, Chief Financial Officer of
Chandi Steel Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company™), certify that:

1. We have reviewed the Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement of the Company, for the
financial year ended 31* March, 2021 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i.  the aforesaid statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading;

ii. the aforesaid statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year
are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct;

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the step that we have
taken or propose to take to rectify the identified deficiencies;

4. That we have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee:
i.  Significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;
il. Significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements and;
ili. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvements therein, if any,
of the management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control
system over financial reporting.

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Kolkata Devendra Prasad Jajodia Tushar Kanti Sarkar
Date : 10™ August, 2021 Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

(DIN — 00045166)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

Pursuant to Clause (i) of point (10) of Para C of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To the Members of
Chandi Steel Industries Limited

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Chandi Steel Industries
Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended on March 31, 2021, as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27,
clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI
Listing Regulations”).

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted
by the Company for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion onthe financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations givento us, and the
representations made by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the year ended on March 31, 2021.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Bajaj Todi & Associates
(formerly PS & Associates)

Sd/-

Priti Todi Place: Kolkata

Partner

C.P No.: 7270, ACS: 14611 Date: 10™ August, 2021

UDIN: A014611C000762028

Note : Our attendance for the purpose of physical verification and examination of the records of the company
was impracticable due to lockdown restrictions imposed by the Government due to COVID -19 and We have,
therefore, relied on the electronic data as provided by the company to gather informations and proper records
as necessary for verification.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industry Structure & Development

The steel industry remains at the heart of global development. Steel is the world's most important
engineering and construction material. It is used in every aspect of our lives; in cars and construction
products, refrigerators and washing machines, cargo ships and surgical scalpels. It can be recycled over
and over again without loss of property.

Global Overview

The COVID-19 pandemic continues to be a highly personal, individual experience that is also an
unprecedented globally-shared phenomenon with wide-ranging repercussions. The pandemic has
disrupted lives across all countries and communities and negatively affected global economic growth in
2020 beyond anything experienced in nearly a century.

Global GDP contracted by 3.5% in 2020 as governments in both developed and emerging economies took
measures to contain the spread of the COVID-19 virus. While the decline was sharper than the global
financial crisis in 2009, but the scale of the fiscal response to the COVID-19 crisis was unprecedented and
three times bigger than 2008-09 financial crisis. The response by policy makers prevented a collapse that
would have been at least three times worse, and the medium-term losses for the global economy are
expected to be smaller than the global financial crisis.

Disruption on both demand and supply resulted in global steel demand in 2020 to fall by 0.2% against a
growth of 3.7% in 2019. The total demand in 2020 was 1,772 MnT against 1,775 MnT in 2019. The
impact of COVID-19 has been much more benign for the steel industry due to resurgent demand in China
and better than expected post lockdown recovery globally in second half of 2020. China and Turkey were
two key countries that saw an increase in finished steel demand of 9% and 13% respectively in 2020.
North America and the European Union (‘EU’) have experienced strong decline in steel demand owing to
the COVID-19 pandemic. Both regions experienced demand decline of around 11%-16%. India also
contributed to global decline, as steel consumption in India declined by 13.7% to 88.5 MnT in 2020
against 102.6 MnT in 2019.

Up to 30% of global steelmaking capacity (excluding China) was idled or production at steel mills
significantly reduced in response to a pandemic-induced drop in demand. However, the recovery in
automotive production and white goods manufacturing was quicker than expected when the strictest
lockdown measures were lifted. The construction sector was less affected, as it was supported by
government stimulus schemes in many regions. As a result, steel prices rallied in all regions in late 2020.

Despite the influence of the pandemic, through its different regional impacts, the global steel industry was

fortunate to end 2020 with only a minor contraction in steel demand. Steel use in China expanded while it
contracted in the rest of the world.
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I World crude steel production 1950 to 2020 (million tonnes)
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Source: World steel association
Indian Overview

India witnessed a gradual resumption of economic activity from second quarter of F.Y. 2020-21. The
initial recovery was driven by government spending on infrastructure, exports and rural economy. The
recovery gained momentum since August 2020 with pickup in consumption demand driven by festive
buying and return of urban consumption. However, the growth projections for FY 2021-22 have been
revised to be below 11% due to the acute resurgence of the virus in the country, as many cities and states
went into lockdown. While the growth will depend upon the trajectory of the pandemic, the overall impact
on the economy is expected to be less severe than last year.

India is expected to witness a full economic recovery in F.Y. 2021-22 driven by:

(a) ongoing vaccination supporting the current recovery momentum;

(b) restart of investment cycle with significant spending on infrastructure and

(c) continued recovery in consumption supported by urban demand, accentuated by work-from-home and
preferences for personal mobility along with rising rural income and affordability.

However, normal growth levels would be seen in FY 2022-23 only, provided no further economic
disruption occurs and success of the ongoing vaccination drive.

The steel industry suffered a setback due to the COVID19 pandemic outbreak and the consequent lock
downs. The industry’s key customer sectors like automobiles, construction and oil & gas drillers struggled
hard to survive due to prolonged shutdowns, disrupted supply chains, collapsing confidence and delayed
investment and construction projects, as well as a decline in consumption activity.

The Indian steel industry recovered gradually, initially driven by export followed by gradual recovery in
domestic demand. Strong rebound in manufacturing and infrastructure development activity has led to a
sharp rise in both production and consumption of steel in India.

World’s Crude Steel production stood at 1864.0 MT during the year 2020, down by 0.9% over the same
period of last year, based on provisional data released by the World Steel Association. India was the 2nd
largest Crude Steel producer and recorded a decline of 10.6% in production during this period as
compared to the same period of last year.
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World Crude Steel Production: Top 10 Countries, 2019 (January-December, 2020)

Rank | Country Qty (in Million % change over 2019
Tonne)*

1 China 1053.0 52
2 India 99.6 -10.6
3 Japan 83.2 -16.2
4 Russia 73.4 2.6
5 United States 72.7 -17.2
6 South Korea 67.1 -6.0
7 Turkey 35.8 6.0
8 Germany 35.7 -10.0
9 Brazil 31.0 -4.9
10 Iran 29.0 13.4
Top 10 1580.5 0.4
World 1864.0 -0.9

Source: World Steel Association; *Provisional

India is also a leading producer of Sponge Iron. Capacity in sponge iron making has also increased over
the years and stood at 48.01 million tonne in 2020. India has been the world’s largest sponge iron
producer every year since 2003. India is also an important producer of Pig Iron. With setting up of several
units in the private sector during the period of post-liberalisation, the imports have drastically been
reduced and India has turned out to be a net exporter of Pig Iron.

The table below shows the trend in production, import, export and consumption of total finished steel
(alloy + non-alloy) in the country for the last five years:

Total Finished Steel (alloy + non-alloy)

Year Production Import Export Consumption
2016 116.952 8.430 5.902 83.642
2017 124.690 7.828 10.871 88.679
2018 108.646 7.295 6.692 96.737
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2019 104.062 7.440 8.205 102.622

2020* 91.435 4.463 10.150 88.535

Total Finished Steel (Alloy+ Non-alloy)

Million Tonne
N\

2019  2020*

2016 2017

Production B Import Export Consumption

Source: Ministry of Steel; *Provisional

Opportunities, threats, risks and concern

Opportunities

The key opportunities boosting the steel demand are as follows:

» Government’s focus on strengthening the domestic manufacturing base under the flagship “Atmanirbhar
Bharat” programme. The Production Linked Incentive scheme has been introduced to boost the
manufacturing sector in industries like automobile & auto components, consumer durables, solar
equipment, telecom, etc. These are expected to boost steel consumption.

* Government has announced an investment of over 1 trillion in infrastructure over the next 5 years. This
would be a key growth driver not only for steel industry but will also be a multiplier of growth across the
sectors, boosting steel demand from sectors such as transportation, real estate and infrastructure.

As per the National steel policy crafted during FY 2017-18, the crude steel production target for India is
set at 300 MT by 2030. Share of sponge iron in steel making will be 80MT, which will create huge
opportunity for sponge iron industry. The current low per capita steel consumption in the country shall
provide ample scope for growth in the industry.

The industry is also benefitting from the developments happening across various industries. The new
Vehicle Scrappage policy will help in reducing the steel prices since the policy enables recycling the
materials used in old vehicles. In the healthcare front, major steel producers are now exceeding their
production capacities to produce oxygen cylinders for COVID patients.

75



CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L13100WB1978PLC031670
ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021

In January 2021, the Ministry of Steel, Government of India, signed a Memorandum of Cooperation
(MoC) with the Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry, Government of Japan, to boost the steel sector
through joint activities under the framework of India—Japan Steel Dialogue.

Threats, risks and concern

The Key risks are global steel demand scenario, domestic steel demand, economic slowdown, increase in
financial charges, non-availability (or undue increase in cost) of raw materials, such as iron ore, coal and
labour etc., coupled with market fluctuations. The Company does not apprehend any inherent risk in the
long run, with the exception of certain primary concerns that have afflicted the progress of our industry in
general, like:

Shortage of Labour
e Rising manpower and material costs

Approvals and procedural difficulties

Lack of adequate sources of finance.

Apart from this the Industry is highly labour intensive and is subject to stringent labour laws. The industry
by nature is capital intensive and requires high capital, by various modes, increasing cost of borrowing
remains one of the major concerns for the group and industry as a whole.

The COVID-19 crisis, with its disastrous consequences for public health, also represents an enormous
crisis for the world economy. The consumers have been hit by a general freeze in consumption, by
shutdowns and by disrupted supply chains.

QOutlook

India has emerged as the fastest growing major economy in the world and is expected to be one of the top
three economic powers in the world over the next 10-15 years, backed by its robust democracy and strong
partnerships.

The outlook for the industry looks reasonable, since India has good iron ore deposits, skilled manpower
and growing demand for steel. The improved demand is expected to continue in the current fiscal as well
on the back of ongoing government funded infrastructure projects. In spite of a downturn in the Global
Steel demand, Indian steel demand could survive showing an upward trend, setting a road ahead for the
growth of the domestic steel industry in the long run. The upward trend is expected to be continued on
account of fiscal measures taken by the Government such as infusion of funds for development of
infrastructure sector, introduction of stimulus packages for revival of industry besides factors like increase
in consumption and production of steel, upcoming infrastructure and Greenfield projects, stabilization of
prices etc.

As per WorldSteel reports steel demand will grow by 5.8% in 2021 to reach 1,874.0 million tonnes (Mt),
after declining by 0.2% in 2020. In 2022 steel demand will see further growth of 2.7% to reach 1,924.6
Mt.

There have been investments across various sectors of the economy. Numerous foreign companies are
setting up their facilities in India on account of various Government initiatives like Make in India and
Digital India. Shri Narendra Modi, Prime Minister of India, launched Make in India initiative with an aim
to boost country’s manufacturing sector and increase purchasing power of an average Indian consumer,
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which would further drive demand and spur development, thus benefiting investors. The Government of
India, under its Make in India initiative, is trying to boost the contribution made by the manufacturing
sector with an aim to take it to 25% of the GDP from the current 17%.

The Covid-19 pandemic is far from over. The trajectory of the pandemic still remains unpredictable to a
very large extent, with country already witnessing a second wave of Covid-19. Our overriding priority
remains, therefore, to protect lives and livelihoods. As the second wave of the pandemic unfolds with
predictions of a third wave in the offing, our focus continues to be on our people’s health & safety. The
relentless commitment and dedication of every member of the Chandi family helped the business
overcome many challenges in the past year. The Company has already demonstrated its ability to navigate
through such a volatile and uncertain external environment and being well.

Product wise Performance Analysis

Your Company has an integrated steel plant and manufactures different products in Steel sector. Your
Company’s cumulative product wise sale details are given hereunder:

The sale of Non-Alloy Steels was Rs. 19,637.1 lacs during the financial year 2020-21 as compared to Rs.
20,655.49 lacs during the financial year 2019-20. The sale of Alloy Steels was Rs. 1,190.90 lacs during
the financial year 2020-21 as compared to Rs. 1,190.90 lacs during the financial year 2019-20.

Financial Performance

During the year under review, the Company has earned Revenue (comprising of sales and other income)
amounting to Rs. 23,029.89 lacs as compared to Rs. 24,118.08 lacs during the previous financial year.

Stringent lockdown, manpower underutilisation, supply chain and logistics issues and health concerns
impacted our business operations. We, however, made concerted efforts to not just successfully mitigate
risks and protect business but to also support our employees, customers and communities adapt the new
normal in a sustainable manner.

Your company is committed to its vision to emerge as an efficient producer of iron and steel products. It
seeks to enhance domestic steel consumption and ensure high quality steel production and create a
technologically advanced and globally competitive steel industry. Your company is focused on increasing
capacity utilisation of all units, reducing cost and improving operational efficiency.

Changes in Key Financial Ratio

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 Change %

(approx.)
Debtors Turnover 10.54 11.06 (25.65)
Inventory Turnover 8.23 13.64 (39.67)
Interest Coverage Ratio 2.26 2.79 (19.15)
Current Ratio 0.92 0.84 9.78
Debt Equity Ratio 1.44 1.67 (13.90)
Operating Profit Margin 0.05 0.08 (34.44)
Net profit Margin 0.03 0.05 (41.61)
Return on Net Worth 0.19 0.38 (50.81)

77



CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L13100WB1978PLC031670
ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021

Explanation: 2020 was a highly volatile and challenging year for the Company. Covid-19 changed almost
every aspect of human lives in ways never imagined. The economic toll from the pandemic was
unprecedented. Operational challenges mounted due to restricted movement and disrupted supply lines.
As the Covid-19 cases continued to rise exponentially, the economy declined sharply. Increase in prices of
raw material, stalled projects in various sectors especially infrastructure and limited growth in steel
demand etc. created further hardship on the Company. However, management is continuously taking
corrective measures to improve the working of the Company.

Despite all odds, fact remains the same that Steel industry is the foundation industry of any economy,
especially developing countries where material intensity is likely to increase significantly in the future.
Further, Steel is a completely recyclable material making it ideal for achieving a circular economy in
India. The Company will seize the opportunity to create an organised circular economy system for steel
recycling.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company believes in systematic working and placing of proper checks. The Company has proper and
adequate system of internal controls commensurate with its size and nature of operations to provide
reasonable assurance that all assets are safeguarded, transactions are authorised, recorded and reported

properly.

Internal Control is a part of day to day management and administration of your Company. The Company
has a proper and adequate system of Internal Control, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity
of its operations to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of its business including adherence to corporate
policies, safeguarding of assets, prevention of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of
accounting records and preparation of reliable financial information.

The Internal Audit functions serve to provide independent and objective assurance on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the organisation’s risk management, control and governance processes and assesses
opportunities for improvement in business processes, systems and controls and provides
recommendations designed to add value to the organisation and follows up on the implementation of the
agreed audit committee recommendations.

The Company has an Audit Committee to continuously monitor the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control environment across your company. The Audit Committee of your Company comprises of
eminent professionals who are well versed with the financial management. The Internal Auditor submits
detailed reports periodically to the management and the Audit Committee. The Management makes it a
point that the Internal Control is brought under regular review and evaluations in consultation with the
Internal Auditor. The Audit Committee actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
audit functions of the Company and monitors the implementation of the same. The Committee also calls
for comments of the internal auditors about the Company’s internal controls, scope of audit as and when
required which gives them an additional insight on the assessment of such controls. Such adequate
internal control system helps in identification of potential operation processes.

Human Resource

The Company is dedicated to have an optimum level of human resource and believes in the concept of
right talent at the right job since it considers human capital to be the most valuable asset of your
Company. Chandi has always stepped up and reviewed its HR policies to ensure transparency, to
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incorporate in it the competitiveness in the globally dynamic business environment and to become more
powerful and develop itself to be the standard and a successful one. The Human resource managers of the
Company have the tools and the opportunity to leverage employee commitment to, and engagement in,
the Company’s growth strategy.

The Company is proud to have a talented pool of around 205 employees as on 31 March, 2021,
comprising of professionals from different background with a mix of youth and experience, the leadership
and knowledge of the senior management is aligned with the zeal and enthusiasm of the youth brigade.

Considering the health and safety of the employees of the Company and in line with the advisories, orders
and directions issued by both State and Central Government in order to prevent the spread of the
coronavirus (Covid 19) outbreak, the Company has suspended its operations except critical operations at
plant level till the lockdown period. Further the Company has also implemented Work from Home Policy
to ensure the safety of employees post Covid 19 issue. The HR department of the Company is
continuously in touch with the employees to guide them and solve their problems. The HR Department of
the Company has continuously created the awareness of Covid 19 among the employees of the Company
and has also educated the employees in respect of personal hygiene and precautions which needs to be
taken in this situation of pandemic.

Comprehending the importance of the role played by vaccines in our fight against the virus, the Company
has conducted the immunization drive to vaccinate its employees and their family members and also
public at large.

The Company has maintained healthy and cordial industrial relations during the year.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s objectives,
projections, estimates and/or expectations may be “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
applicable laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied.
Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include, among others,
domestic and international economic conditions affecting demand/supply and price conditions, changes in
the government regulations, tax laws and other statutes and other incidental factor.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Kolkata Sd/-
Devendra Prasad Jajodia
Date: 10™ August, 2021 Chairman & Managing Director

(DIN: 00045166)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To

The Members of Chandi Steel Industries Limited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Chandi Steel Industries
Limited (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31¥ March 2021, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive income),the statement of change in
equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Standalone
financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us, the
aforesaid ‘standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013(*the Act”) in the manner so required and give a frue and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind As”) and other accounting principal generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2021, the profit and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section [43(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics ' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
independence requirements that are refevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics, We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements. '

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have defermined the matters

described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

C-Block Mercantile Building Contact No.+91 9830
9/12,tal Bazar Street, Muail ot: ykjatania@gmail.com
Koltkata 700001




B YJATANIA & CO

Chortered Accountants e
Sr. No. | Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response
1. Revenue recognition Cur audit included a combination of testing of

We Identified revenue recognition as
a key audit matter because there is an
inherent industry risk around the
accuracy of revenue recorded by the
Company specifically exports of
Goods.

The company’s revenue consists of
straight-forward product sales where
revenue is recognized when the
significant  risk and  rewards
connected with ownership of goods
have been fransferred to the buyer
depending on terms of contract with
the customers.

Recognizing the Export Revenue is
the bigger issue as it depends on the
basis of commonly used FOB and
CIF,

internal control over financial reporting with
respect to revenue récognition including procedures
relating to business reviews performed by the
different business Areas, analytical procedures and
detailed test of significant new customer contract.
Different contracts may contain different delivery
terms that need to be considered in terms of
revenue recognition,

Qur audit also included details test of proof of
delivery to confirm that risk had been transferred to
the customer. We have in our audit had special
focus on revenue recognition with the business area
of export of goods.

We have verified each and every shipment
documents and the exporter’s obligation connected
with the transfer of ownership of goods to the
buyér both n FOB and CIF.

Our audit also included the test verification for
entitlement of duty draw back and its recognition.

Based on our work, we had no materials
observations for the overall audit on Company’s
accounting for revenue recognition,

Measurement of Inventory

The company keep significant stock
of raw materials, consumable stores,
spare parts at its production units and
stores of finished goods mostly at its
sales and  distribution  centre.
Measurement of Inventory s
important for a fair representation of
grOss margin.

1t is demanding to prepare accurate
reporting of the acquisition cost
when procurement, production and
logistical processes are complex.
Establishing product costing requires
many instance of management
Judgment with effect on the reported
values. This includes considering
normal production levels, foreign
currency and prices of raw materials

QOur audit included but was not limited to the
following activities :

Mapped and evaluated selected systems and
methodology applied by the management for
consistency with prior years and our knowledge of
industry practice and tested a sample of key
controls for establisliing volumes and cost.

Tested, on a sample basis, stocks of raw materials
to actual prices. Assessed the reasonableness of the
product costing for work in progress and finished
goods.

Participated in stock takes at a great number of
Jocations and tested the cut-off of deliveries in or
out of inventory.

Testing " the estimated future sales values, less
estimated costs to sell against the carrying value of
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and allocation of other direct and | the inventories.
indirect costs. For finished goods,
assessmertt is needed of | Recalculating the arithmetical accuracy of the
obsolescence and how sellable the | computations.

products are. Finally, there i1s a
complexity in  monitoring and [ Obtained the Management’s monitoring controls of
measuring volumes particularly for | slow movers and assessments of obsclescence as
some raw materials and work in | well as net selling prices.

progress.

The accounting policies included the
company’s accounting principles for
measuring inventory.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not.express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
others wise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financjal Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, totaf
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind
As and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and désign, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
fraud or error.
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ln preparing the standalone Financial Statements, management is respensible for assessing the
company’s liability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsibie for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance in a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exist, Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audif in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit proceduse responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, mtentlonal omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such confrols.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by managemént. '

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’ ability to continue as a continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are require to draw
attention I n our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, On our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors, report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ FEvaluate the overall representation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statement that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii} to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstaterents in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charges with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charges with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the avdit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not commanicated in our report because the adverse consequence of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the publtc interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
[. Asrequired by Section 143 (3} of the Act, we report that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as requu*ed by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books,

¢)  The Balance Sheef, the Statement of Profit -and Loss{including other comprehensive
income), Statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
Specified under section 133 of the act read with rule 7 of the companies (Accounts) rules,
2014.

e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 3ist March,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as
on 31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director i in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

f)  With Respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A”, Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the company’s internal fi nancial controls guer=hnatnia
reporting. /
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g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance
with the requirement of section [97(16) of the act , as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h)  With respect to the other matters to be incfuded in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 26 to the Ind AS standalone financial statements:

ii} The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Accounting
Standards, for materials foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts including
derivative contracts.

iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the
extent applicable. :

For,B Y Jatania & Co.
Chartered Accountant

For B. Y. JATARN: @314¢J0E
Chartered couni; i

CcA YAS‘?XNT ummgs k
. Propmgspsieior)
Membership No. 050031

UDIN : 21050031 AAAACNE828

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 28-June-2021
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
{Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” section of our report to
the member of Chandi Steel Industries Lid. of even date.)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Chandi Steel Industries
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Managemeut’s Responsibility for Internal financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of [ndia”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors® Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10} of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
standards and the guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain the reasonable assurance about whether adeguate intemnal financial control
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects. '

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectivenéss of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinton on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting of
the company.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accuratety and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the-inherent limitations-of-internal financial controls over financial reporting, including—— —
the possibility of cellusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due

to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,

or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
company has , in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Infernal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India”.

B Y Jatania & Cao.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number:
0311010
For B. Y. JATANIA & CO.
Chartered ountants
Y ‘I( JATQ;Q
netor
YASHW

JATANIA

Proprietor

Membership number: §50031
UDIN : 21050031AAAACNB328

Place: Kotkata
Date: 28-June-2021
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Statements of Chandi
Steel Industries Limited.

(Referrved to in paragraph 2 under *Report on other Legal and regulatory requirements”
scction of our report to the members of Chandi steel Industries Ltd. of even date.)

(i)In respect of Companies Fixed Assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b)AIl fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the period but there is
a regular programme of verification in a phased manner o cover all the items of fixed assets
over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the pature of its assets, No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. '

(c) There was no disposal of substantial part of fixed assets during the period.

(i1) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the period.

(b) The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(¢) The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory a;ld no material discrepancies were
noticed on physical verification. '

(iif)  The Company had granted loan toc a Company covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013,

i
(a) The receipts of the principal amount and interest have been regular.

(b) The above loan is stated to be re-payable on demand. We are informed that, the Company has
received back the amount of loan to the extent demanded by it and thus there has been no
default on the part of such party to whom the money has been fent. The payment of interest
has been regular.

(¢) As the party has repaid the amount of loan whenever demanded, therefore there is no overdue
amount for the above loan granted to a Company listed in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has complied with the provision of section 185 & 186 of the act in respect of grant leans ,
making investments and providing guarantees and securities as applicable.

C-Block Mercantite Building Contact No,+91
9/12,Lal Bozar Street, Mail at: ykjotanio@gmail.com
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(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of section 73
to 76 or any other refevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rule framed there

under,

(vi)

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the

rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, refated to the manufacture of its products and
are of the opinton that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employees® state insurance, income-tax, goods and service act, custom
duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

(b} There were no undisputed amount payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Custom Duty, Cess and other materials
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,2021 for a period of more than six months from

the date they became payable.

(¢) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of sales-tax, service tax,
excise duty and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Nature of dues Amount Period to which the | Forum where dispute
statute @ inlacs) amount relates is pending
Central Excise | Show Cause Notice 4,08 2010-11 to 2014-15 | Commissioner
Act, 1944 Pending for
adjournment
Central Excise | Short Payment of GTA 2.20 2013-14 Commissioner
Act, 1944 " (Appellate)
Central Excise | Irregular Availment of 3438 2009-10,2010-11 Appeal Hearing
Act, 1944 Service Tax Credit and 2011-12 pending before
CESTAT
The Central Pending statutary 2.0 2014-15 West Bengal
Sales Tax Act, | Forms Appellate and
1956 Revision Board.
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(viii)

(ix)

)

(x1)

(xii)

(xiif)

(xiv)

(xv)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. During the vear the company has not
taken any loan either from financial institutions or from the govemnment and has not issued
any debentures.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loan during the year. Accordingly paragraph 3(ix) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no materials fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during
the course of our audit.

According to the information and expianation given fo us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not & nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xit) of the Order in not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
appiicable. '

{xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of

India Act 1934,
For, BY Jatania & Co.

po pClHraRA Sssani

. Chartere

K. JATANI
. ! ‘NProprietor
CA Yashwant Kumar Jatania

{Proprietor)

Place: Kolkata Membership No. 050031
Dated: 28-June-2021 UDIN : 21050031 AAAACNSS28

C-Block Mercantile Building Contact No.+91 9830752875
9/12 tal Bazar Street, Mail at: ykjatania@gmail.com
Kolkata 700001
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Chandi Steel Industries Limited

Notes ta Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

1 COMPANY OVERVIEW

Chandi Steels Industries Uimited is a public fimited company incorporated and domiciled in India, its
registered office being at 3, Bentinck Street, PS Hare Street, Kolkata-700001. Its equity shares are fisted
with the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited. Heavy Rounds and Flats in various Carbon, Mild and Alloy
Steel grades are manufactured in its factory situated in Liluah, Howrah, West Bengal. It is a jeading
manufacturer of forging and engineering quality alloy and non-alloy steel Rounds, Flats and Squares and
has the exclusive ability to manufacture various sophisticated grades of steel conforming to national and
international standards.

pA SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance o .
The firancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act'} and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The company's finandal statements up to and for the year ended 31st March 2017 were prepared in
accordance with Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 notified under section 133 of the Act
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Historical Cost Convention
Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the following items:

a  Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
¢ Defined benefit plans - Plan assets are measured at fair value

Use of estimates

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS, management has made estimates,
judgments and assumptions which affect the appfication of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and Underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting are
recognized prospectively. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period
in which changes are made and, if material, their affects are disclosed in the nofes to financial
statements.
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Critical estimates and judgments
The areas involving ¢ritical estimates or judgments are as follows:
* Estimation of defined benefit obligation
The cost of the defined benefit gratulty plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined wsing actuarial wvaluations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities invelved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.
s Impalrment of trade recelvables
The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The management uses judgment in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the company’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Il Current and Nan-Current classification

The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current

ciassification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

s Expected 1o be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in narmal operating cycle.

¢  Held primarily for the purpose of trading

s Expected to be realized within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

*  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current,
A liabifity is current when:

s [tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

* Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

*  |tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting pericd

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

IV Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the company. Free
hold land is carried at historicai cost. All other items, of property, plant and equipment are stated at
historicat cost less depreciation. Historical AAolddes Bxi ndstures that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. \‘ o
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.
Costs directly attributable to acguisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready
for use, as intended by management.

The cast of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and
direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended
use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major compaonents) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it Is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the company and the cost of the item can be measured refiably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. Whien a major inspection is performed,
its cost is not recognlzed in the carrying ameunt of the pfant and equipment as a replacement. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to Profit or Loss during the regorting period in which they are
Incurred. Property, piant and equipment includes spare parts, stand by equipments and servicing
equipment which are expected to be used for a period more than twelve months and meets the
recognition criteria of property, plant and eguipmeant.

On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property,
plant and equipment recognized as at 1 April 2016 measured as per the previous Indian GAAP and use
that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Based on technical assessment made by technical expert and Management estimate the entity
depreciates items of property, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are same as
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated
useful fives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be

used.
»  Factory Building: 30vyears . MbtorVehicle: Eyears
s  Office Equipments: 5-20years ¢ Plant and Machinery: 10-20yaars
¢  Furniture and Fixtures: 10vyears s Computers: 3years

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line basis to the extent of
depreciable amount on pro-rata basis over the useful life of respective assets as prescribed under
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,

Advances paid towards the acquisition of properti', plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance
Sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not put
to use before such date are disclesed under ‘Capital work-in-process’.

Ap item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
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arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset} is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, usefu! lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and eguipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

V Provisions

A provision is recognized ¥, as a result of a past event, the company has a present obligation {legal or
constructive} that is reasonzbly estimable, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settie the obligation. Provisions are not recognized for future aperating losses.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are measured at the present value of
management's best estimate of the amount required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is 2 pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the fiability. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognizgd as interest expense,

V| Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardiess of when the payment is being made.
Revenue s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of paymenti and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government. The management has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements
since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing Iatitude and is also exposed
to inventory and credit risks,
Goods and service tax (GST) is not recelved by the company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected
on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded
from revenue,
The specific recognition criteria described below must zlso be met before revenue is recognized.
A. Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of
geods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and
allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. '

8. Interest Income
For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other
camprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate [EIR).
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EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial jiability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the management estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. interest
income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

VII fnventories

inventories are valired at the lower of cost and net realizabie value.
Cost incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition is accounted as follows:

i Raw materials: cost lncludes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average
basis.

i, Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materiats and labor and a
propertion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal cperating capacty, but
excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on weighted average basfs,

iii. Stores and spares: cost includes cost of General Stores, Wiras and Felts and Packing materials.
Cost is determined on weighted average basis,

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Vil rounding of amounts

All amounts of financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
reguirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated.

IX Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company, i.e.,
net profit after tax less after tax amount of preference dividend, by the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the after Income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that

would have been outstanding ass version of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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X Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term depaosits with an original maturity of three months.

X| Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of fhe asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in cennection with the
borrowing of funds, Borrawing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the interest costs.

Xl Financial Instruments

Inittal Recognition

The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomas & party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value
on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities, those are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on
initiaf recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets .are accounted for at trade date
i.e., the date at which the company commits ¢o purchase or sell the asset.

Subsegquent Measurement

{i) Financial assets carried at amortized cost:

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initlal measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate {EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking inte account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an’integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization Is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and cther receivables.
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(i) Financial assets at fair value through prefit or loss:

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently fair valued
through profit or loss. The company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amonrtized cost or FVTOCI ¢riteria, as at FVTPL, which is thereafter irrevocable. However, such election
is atiowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred
1o as ‘accounting mismatch’). The company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL,

(it} Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities are subsequently carded at amartized cost using the effective interest method,
except for contingent consideration recognized in a busingss combination which is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year
from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of
these instruments. The company’s financial liabifities include trade and other payables and loans and
borrowings. Loans and Barrowings- After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recoghized in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as wel!l as through the EIR amortization process.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition ang fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments

The company derecognizes a finandal asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition
under Ind AS 109. A financia!l liability {or a part of a financifal fiability) is derecognized from the
company's balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financlal liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing fiability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference In the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss. '

Fair Value of Financlal Instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instrurnents, the company uses a variety of methods and
assumpticns that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The
methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market
prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value,
and such value may never actually be realized. '

Dffsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, o realizgHERsEatgand settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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X1 impairment

a. Financial assets

The company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL} model for the
financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade
receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount egual to lifetime
ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the
12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in
which case those are measured at lifetime ECL.

As a practical expedient, the company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historicaily
observed defaalt rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the histerical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed. Considering a discount rate of 10%,
provision rates for delay risk are as under:

Ageing Discount for Delay

0-180 days 0%

181-365 days 15%

1-2 years . 25%

2-3 years 50%

Above 3 years 100% '

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss {Profit and Loss). This amount Is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the Profit and Loss.

ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in
the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off
criteria, the company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrylng amount.

b. Non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment are evaluzied for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not he recovereble. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost o sell and
the value-in-use) is determined on an Individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate
cash flows that are [argely independent of those from cther assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount Is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized In the statement of
profit and loss s measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the
estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of
profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount,
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined {net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation} had no impairment loss been
recognized for the assetin prior years.
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XIV Foreign currencies

Items included in the financlal statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates (the functional currency).The company's financial
statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is also the company’s financial currency.
Monetary assets and fliabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transtated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. :

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated at the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Exchange differences are recognized in
profit or loss, except exchange differences arising from the translation of equity instcuments at fair
value through OCI {FVOCI) which are recognized in OCI.

a) Transactions in foreign exchange covered by forward contracts are accounted for at the
contracted rates.

b) Transactions other than those covered by forward contracts are recognized at the exchange
rates prevailing on the date of their occurrence.

c) Monetary assets and liahilities in foreign currency that are outstanding at the year end and not
covered by forward contracts are translated at the year-end exchange rates.

d) The exchange differences arising from long term foreign currency monetary items relating to
the acquisition of a depreciable asset are added to or deducted from the cost of the depreciable
capital assets. Other exchange differences arising from long-term foreign currency menetary items
are transferred to “Forelgn currency monetary item translation difference account” to be
amortized aver the fife of such monetary items but not beyend 31st March 2020. Other exchange
differences are recognized as income or expense in the Profit and Loss account.

XV Falr value maasurement

The management measures financlal instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
trensaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

e Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
s In the absence of a principal market, in the most advartageous market for the asset or
iiability '
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company.
The falr value of an asset or a liability Is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it tc another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,
The management uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
= level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities
+ level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
« level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant te the fair
value measurement is uncbservable
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
management determines whether transfers have éccurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the jowest level input that is 5:ngcant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period,

XVI Employee benefits

Shaort term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monstary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholiy within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognized in respect of employee’s services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Post-employment obligations

The company eperates the following post-employment schemes;
{a) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and

{b) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund

Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recegnized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the
present value of the defined beneflt obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of
plan assets, The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit
credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit ebligation denominated ‘in INR is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period
on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the retated obligation. The
benefits which are denominated in currancy other than INR, the cash flows are discounied using

market vields determined by to high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
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currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating to the terms cof the
related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets, This cost is included in employee benefit expense
in the statement of profit or loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes In equity and in the
balance sheet.

Changes In the present value of the defined benefit cbligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

The company pays provident fund contribution to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations. The company has no further payment obligations ance the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are
recognized as an asset to the extent that cash refund or a reduction In the future payment Is
availzble.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related service, 'i'hey are therefore measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees
up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are
discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating
1o the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a resuit of experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the balance sheet if the
entity does not have an uncenditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the
reparting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Bonus plans _
The company recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses. The company recognizes a provision
where contractually obliged or where there'is a past practice that has created a consiructive

obligation.




Chandi Steel Industries Limited

MNotes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

XVI! Taxes
Tax comprises current and deferred tax. it is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to a business combination or to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or {oss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or recaivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, relsted to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates {and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. [

Current tax assets and current tax Habilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceabie right to set
off the recognized amounts, and it Is intendad to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simuitaneously.

Deferrad tax
Deferred tax Is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.
Deferred tax is not recognized for:
= temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liahilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss at the time of the transaction;l '
= taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized using liability method, to the extent that it is probable that futuce
taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The company recognizes a deferred
tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxabie temporary differences or there is convincing
other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be avaliable against which such deferred tax asset
can be realized. Deferred tax assets — unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at each reporting
date and are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no fonger probable respectivefy
that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax conseguences that would follow from the manner
in which the company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liakilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

For B. Y. JATANIA & CO.

Chartered Accfuntants

™~ . ( :
/} 8. JATANIA <
. Rroprietar




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

{X In Lakhs)
Particulars MNote As at March 31, As at March 31,
No. 2021 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 3.1 2,337.85 2,347.46
b} Capital work-in-progress 3.2 2,528.83 2,651.42
¢} Financial assets
i) Loans 4 10.63 10.63
4,877.41 5,009.51
Current assets
a) Inventories 5 3,377.13 2,208.21
b} Financial assets
i} Trade receivables 6.1 3,654.,07 1,936.51
ii} Cash and Cash equivalents 6.2 85.72 1,351.88
iily Bank balance other than {ii) above 6.3 419.44 123.86
iv) Loans 6.4 259.75 253.79
c} Income Tax assets (Net) 15 11.82 16.46
d) Other current assets 7 1,113.61 1,108.50
o 8,921.54 7,000.21
Total Assets 13,798.95 12,009.72
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
a) Equity Share capital 8 1,053.62 1,053.62
b) Other equity 9 2,536.69 2,025.17
3,590.31 3,078.79
LIABILITIES
Non-gcurrent liabilities
a) Financial fiabilities
i) Borrowings 10 406.66 451.50
b) Deferred tax ilabilities {Net) 11 107.74 12033
¢} Provisions 12 18.42 14.04
533.82 585.87
Current liabilities
a) FInancial liabilities
i) Borrowings 13.1 4,756.00 4,694.28
ii) Trade Payables 13.2
Due to MSMED 55.77 65.88
Due to other than MEMED 3,676.77 1,428.44
i1} Other financial liabilities 13.3 183.58 156.84
b} Provisions 14 0.99 1.94
¢} Other current liabilities 16 '1,001.71 1,997.68
9,674,82 8,345.06
Total Equity and liabilities 13,798.95 12,009.72
Significant accounting policies (1-2) and other accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements
As per Report of even date “,{ fcgjnd_ on behalf of the Board
IATONIAZ Q. @ a1 = =
Cﬁr fﬁbﬁ%ﬁ A?_;coﬁ $%¢Iau . fraltsco. J(J / , wjh« LA
FRN : 0311010€ | z(j_ ’ﬁ)/) :‘\ea::nc.ira ;rasad Jajodia S{fsanta Sarkar
ging Director Director
7/ 37\ K.JA AN IA {DIN : 00D45166) (DIN : 06449312}
CA YASWANT KU ARP ARRAIROT
{Proprietor) [
M.No. : 050031 A Lo A Lo Tuehow K\ML Canka
Kolkata Seema Chowdhury Tushar Kanti Sarkar

Chief Financial Officer

Date: 28th June 2021 Company Secretary



CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 2021

{% in Lakhs)
Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
. Revenue from operations 17 22,986.17 23,903.97
il. Other Income 18 43.72 21411
lil. Total income(i+l) 23,029.89 = 24,118.08
V. EXPENSES
Cast of material consumed 19 18,166.64 16,919.63
Purchase of Trading Goods 19.1 - 278,50
Changt.e in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and 20 (703.32) 197.18
work -in-progress
Employee benefit expense 21 517.47 471.82
Finance costs 22 534.45 652.39
Depreciation and amortization expense 23 '225.33 200.00
Other expenses 24 3,618.20 4,231.36
Total expense {IV] 22,358.77 22,95(1.88
V. Profit/{loss) before exceptional items and tax (HI-1V} 671.12 1,167.20
VI. Exceptionhalitéms - -
VIL.  Profit/{lass) before tax [V-VI} , 67112 1,167.20
VIIl. Tax expense: 25
{i] Current tax 173.42 288.78
{1i) Short Provisian refated to earlier year - 4,68
{lii) Deferred tax {12.90) (7.99)
IX. Profit{{toss) for the year {VII-VIIl} 510.60 881.73
X. Other Comprehensive Income
A (i} Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 1,23 {2.40)
(i) Income tax relating to ltems that will not be reclassified to {0.31) 0.60
profit or loss
B (i} ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(4} Income tax relating fo items that will not be reclassified to -
profit or loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income X{A+B}) 0,92 {1.80)
Xl. Total Comprehensive Income for the period
{[X+X}{Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive 511,52 §79.93
Income for the period)
Xil. Earnlngs per equity share : :
Basic & Diluted 4.85 3.37

Significant accounting policies {1-2} and other accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements

As per Report of even date (/,)}fj 4@45’}% .

ForBY JATANIA & CO. N Y . ‘
_ {hartered Accountants f C;-u./z_vA“\ Sgurctons
FERRB OMICIBERA MTA & CO. Devendra Prasad Jajodia Susanta Sarkar

Chartered { Managing Director Directar
i\[\ [DIN : 00045166} (DIN : 06445312
CA YASWANT
{Proprietor) ! E
No. 105603 T :
M.o. 050031 2EMM Lo e kan Kands Cavien
Kolkata Seema Chowdhury (] Tushar Kanti Sarkar

Date: 28th June 2021

Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer



Fo

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2021

(% in Lakhs)
particulars Curcent year ended Previous year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A: Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit Before Taxes 671.12 1,167.20
Adjustrnents For :
Depreciation 22533 200.00
OCI-Gratuity 1.23 {2.40)
Prigr Period Expenditure 0.34 0.92
Loss on Forward Exchange Contracts / Exchange Fluctuations {net) 5.80 -
Loss on sale / discard of assets - 5.84
Provision for doubtful debts / advances - 1.28
Interest on Term Loans angd Others 491,29 633.73
Interest income received on FOR {22.02) (70.21)
Insurance Claims : {1.07} (0.78)
Income from Investment {6.82) {17.30)
Liability no longer required written back ' {5.64) {0.09)
Gain on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations {Net) . - [105.30
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 1,359.66 1,812.91
Movements in Working Capital :
Decrease / {lncrease) in Trade Recelvables {2,024.15) 786.47
Decrease / {Increase) in Loans and Advances and Other Current / Non Current Assets 426.57 2,539.11
Decrease / {Increase) in Inventories (1,167.92) {914.20}
{Decrease} / Increase In Trade Payables, Other Current Liabilities and Provisions 1,119.07 [2,673.35}
Cash Generated From Working Capital Changes {1,646.43) (261.97)
Direct Taxes paid (311.83) {311.83)
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities {558.60} 1,234.11
B: Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets (93.23) 230.64
Interest received 22.02 70.21
Investments 6.82 471.43
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities [64.39] 772.28
C: Cash Flow From Financing Actlvitles
Repayment of long / short term Borrowings i6.88 (466.54)
Interest Pald ' [620.06) 601.15)
Net Cash generated from Financing Activities {603.18) (1,067.69)
Net Increase / (Decrease} In Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+() {1,266.17) 943.70
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the year 1,351.88 408.18
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the year 85.72 1,351.88
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 13,22 4,20
Balance with Scheduled Banks on:
Current Account 72.50 1,347.68
Cash and Cash Equivalants in Cash Flow Statement: 85.72 1,351.88

Significant accounting policies {1-2} and other accompanying notes form an integral part of financial staterments

As per Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For,B Y JATANIA & €O, b oot
l

.} Fil < — -
e Aecdune ;1:%38[;|§0' %"‘ﬂﬁf; = Somle,
FRN : 0311010 A Devendra Prasad Jajodia Susanta Sarkar =
VJ\ ue,, Managing Director Director
¢ YK JATANIA k {DIN : 00045166) (DIN : 06449312}
CA YASWANT KU JATARTA )
(Proprietor) )
M.Na. : 050031 g
fguwk b@ﬁm@@t “Tw Lhaa Kfmb\ gwi(\m,,
Kolkata Seema Chowdhury Tushar Kanti Sarkar

Date:r 28th June 2021 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer



CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

A. Equity Share Capital

(% in Lakhs}
Particulars Amount
Balance as at 01 April,2020 1,053.62
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March,2021 1,053.62
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 1,053.62

B. Other Equity

As at March 31,2021 (% in Lakhs)
Reserves and Surplus Other
Particulars . Retained Comprehensive|  Total Other Equity
Capital Reserve
Earnings Income
Balance at 31 March 2020 34,92 1,988.51 1.74 2,025.17
Profit for the period - 510.60 - 510.60
Ind AS Adjusternents - Current Year 1.23 123
IND AS Adjustment for Deferred Tax - Current year {0.31} (0.31)
Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the period - 510.60 0.92 511.52
tssue of share capital
Dividends
Recelved on alloment of equity shares
Transactions with owners - - - -
Balance at 31 March 2021 34.92 2,495.11 2.66 2,536.69
Significant accounting policies {1-2) and other accompanying notes form an integral part of financlal statements
As per Report of even date For and on behah‘ of the Board
For 8 Y JATANIA & CO. ,ff ¢
. Chartered Accountlants _ = (Z‘f o m,ju-.\ gf-“@x
FFREh 310 d AN 1A _L'O- Devendra Prasad Jajodia Susanta Sarkar
oArkaRy oY o Managing Director Director
' o {DIN : 00045166) (DIN : 06449312)
CA YASWANT KURIAR JATANIAN A
{Proprietor) Liprietor =3 e
M.No. : 050031 Lo P lo o b Ttk Koty Lohon-
Kolkats Seema Chowdhury Tushar Kanti Sarkar

Date: 28th lune 2021

Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer
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CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31 2021

Note-4 Loans

{% In Lakhs)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
Security deposits 10.63 10.63
Total 10.63 10.63
Note-5 Inventories
{% In Lakhs)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
. 2021 2020
Raw Materials 1,874.12 1,443.00
Stores and Spares 233.01 199,53
Finished Goods 1,176.44 311.06
By Products and Scrap 93.56 255.62
Total 3,377.13 2,200,21
Note-6.1 Trade Receivables
{Tin Lakhs}
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
Unsecured, considered goad 3,655.03 1,945.62
Lass: Allowance on Doubtful Debts 0.96 5,11
Total 3,654.07 1,936.51
Ageing of Trade Receivable (Net of expected credit loss}
0-30 days 3,619.44 1,825.69
31-90 days 28.75 46.54
91-120 days 2.00 3.04
121-180 days 0.72 42.86
181-365 days 0.61 9.42
Above 1 year but Less thean 2 Year 255 2.27
Above 2 year - 6.65
Above 3 year - -
3,654.07 1,936.51




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31 2021

Note-6.2 Cash and Cash Egulvalents

|Xin Lakhs)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
Balance with banks
Current Account Balances 72.50 1,347.68
Cash in hand 13.22 4.20
Daposits with original maturity for less than 3 months - -
Total 85.72 1,351.88
Note-6.3 Bank Balances other than Note 7.2 above
{X in Lakhs]
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
Deposits with original maturnity for more than 3 months & less than 12 months 419.44 123.86
Daposits with original maturity for more than 12 months - -
Total 419.44 123.86
Fixed Deposits of R5.169.44 (Rs.123.86} Lacs pledged with banks and others as margin money against borrowings/ other facilities.
Note-6.4 Loans
[%in Lakhs)
As at Miarch 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
Unsecured Considered Goods
Security depaosits 158.70 126.24
Loans to Related parties 23.00 29.50
Loans to Others 78.05 98.05
Total 259.75 253.79
Note-7 Other Current Assets
[T in Lakhs)]
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
Advance to Suppliers-Unsecured Considered Goods 325.59 42317
interest Accrued 0.34 -
Balance with Excise and other Government Authorities 782.69 679.81
Duty Drawback Recelvable 4.99 5.52
Total 1,113.61 1,108.50




CHANDI{ STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31 2021

Note- 8 Equity Share Capltal

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
Authorised
12,000,000 Equity Shares of £ 10/- each 1,200.00 1,200.00
Total 1,200.00 1,200.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
10,540,000 Equity Shares of X 10 each, Fully paid up . 1,054.00 1,054.00
Less:Calls unpaid (Due from other than directors or officers) ' 0.38 0.38
Total 1,053.62 1,053.62

{a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :

As at March 31, 2021

No. of Shares {Tin Lakhs)
Equity Shares of ¥10/- each
At the baginning of the perlod 1,05,40,000 1,053.62
Call money received during the period - -
At the end of the year 1,05,40,000 1,053.62

tb) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of ordinary shares {equlty shares) having at par value of  10/- each. Each shareholder of ordinary shares
{equity shareholders) is entitled to one vote per share .The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend propesed by
the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the share helders in the ensuing annual general meeting except In the case of interim dividend
in the event of liguidation, the eguity shareholders are eliglible to receive the remaining assets of the Cornpany afier distributions of all
oreferentizl amounts . in the oroportions to their share holdines.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars No. of Shares % holding in the
class
Mahabali Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. 19,387,900 18.86
Sangeeta lajodia 7,75,000 7.35
Gaurav Jajodia ) 7,70,600 7.31
PPS Steel Trading Pvt. Ltd. 7,50,000 7.11
Aashish Jajodia . : . 7,31,500 6.94
Pawan Kumar Kanodia ' 6,51,998 6.19
Marutl Stockfin Pvt. Ltd. 6,19,000 5.87
Total 62,85,398 59.63

As per records of the Company, including its register of share hclders / members, the above share holdings represents legal ownership of
shares,




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31 2021

Note-9 Other Equlty

{Xin Lakhs)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2019
Capital Reserve 34.92 34,92
Retained Earning** 2,499.11 1,388.51
ocl
Opening OCl 1.74 3.54
Add: During the year OCI 1.23 {2.40]
Less : Deferred Tax {0.31) 0.60
Total OCt 2.66 1.74
Total 2,536.69 2,025.17
Retained Earning** (% in Lakhs)
Frofit & Loss Acount 1,588.51 1,106.77
Add: Profit for the Year 510.60 881.74
Retained Earning 2,499.11 1,988.51

Note: Retained Earing represents the undisputed profit/famount of accumulated earnings of the Company.

Note: Other Comprehensive Income{OCl) comprises iterns of income and expense {including reclassification adjustments) that are not

recognized in profit or loss as required or permitted by other Ind AS.




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31 2021

Note- 10 Borrowings

(X i Lakhs)

As atMarch 31,  Asat March 31,

2021 2020

Unsecured Non Canvertible Debentures 200.00 200.00
Deferred Payment Liability 206.66 251.50
Total 406.66 451.50

Note: 200000 Unsecured, Unlisted, Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs.100/- each fully paid redeemable within 3 months from the expiry

of ten years from the date of allotment at par or at premium as may be decided by the Board. The Debentures shall carry interest of 8% p.a.

Note-11 Deferred tax liabilities {Net)

{X In Lakhs)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
Deferred tax fiability - .
Provisions/Expenses Allowable In future under IT Act {4.89} {3.53)
Timing Difference on Depreciable Assets 112.32 124,46
IND AS Adjustment 0.31 {0.60}
Total 107.74 120.33
Note: Deferred Tax for IND AS Adjustment represents the effect of Re-measurement of Profit & Loss Account as per IND AS.
Note- 12 Provisions
(% In Lakhs)
As at March 31,  Asat March 31,
2021 1020
Gratuity 19.42 14.04
Total 19.42 14.04
Note-13.1 Borrowings
{% in Lakhs)
As at Macch 31,  Asat March 31,
2021 2020
Unsecured
Loans & advances from Other Body Corporate 4,756.00 4,694.28
Total 4,756.00 4,654,28




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31 2021

Note-13.2 Trade Payables

{% In Lakhs)

As at March 31,  As at March 31,

2021 2020

MSMED 55.77 65.88
Qther than MSMED 3,676.77 1,428.44
Total 3,732.54 1,494.32

Note : The Company has circulated confirmation for the indentification of supplier registered under Mirco, Small & Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006. On the basis of information received with the enterprises under the aforesaid act there are some Enterprises to

whom the company owes dues which are outstandin at ear end.

Note 13.3 - COther financial liabilities

{%in Lakhs)
As at March 31,  Asat March 31,
2021 2020
Current Maturity of Long terrn borrowings 83.14 74,38
Capital Creditors 35.64 36.87
Due to employess 64.80 45,59
Total 183.58 156.84
Note 14 - Provisions
{X1n Lakhs}
As at March 31,  Asat March 31,
2021 2020
Leave Salary 0.99 194
Tatal 0.99 1.94
Note 15 - Income Tax Llabllites /[Assets) (Net)
{Tin Lakhs}
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Advance Income Tax 196.31 317.01
less : Provision for Taxation 184.45 300.55
Total 11.82 16.46
Note 16 - Other current liabilites
{Xin Lakhs)
As at March 31,  As atMarch 31,
2021 2020
Advance from Customers 511.25 1,356.14
Statutory dues payable 36.54 58.86
Interest Accrue & Due 453,92 582.68
Total 1,001.71 1,997.68




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD |

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31 2021

Nete-17 Revenue from Operations

(X in Lakhs)

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Sale of products

Finished Goods 20,828.00 21,845.39
Scraps 1,801.21 1,562.01
Other Operating Revenue
Conversion Charges 160.59 169.89
Export Incentives 196.37 325.68
Total 22,986.17 23,903.97
Detalls of Sales [Praduct wise)

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2013

Finished Goods

Non-Alloys Steels 19,637.10 20,655.48
Alloys Steels ~1,190.90 1,190.90
Total 20,828.00 21,846.39
By-Products
Non-Alloys Steel Scrap 1,736.82 1,396.37
Alloys Steel Scrap 31.24 126.93
Coal Fines 33.15 38.71
Total 1,801.21 1,562.01
Note-18 Other Income
[Xin Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Interest an :
Fixed Deposits with Banks [Gross, TDS  1.48 lacs{R 0.64 Lacs)|
Loans & Advances [Gross, TDS Nil (% 5.72 Lacs)}

Profit on sale of Short term Investments (other than trade}
Profit on Exchange Fluctuation {Net)
Impairment Allowance

Discount Received

Qther items

Total

22.02 6.56
- 57.16

6.82 17.30

- 105.30
8.15 -
0.02 2045
5.7 7.34
43.72 214.11




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31 2021

Note-19 Cost of Raw Material Consumed

_{%in Lakhs)

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Opening Stock 1,443.00 408.23
Purchases 18,597.76 17,954.40
20,040.76 18,362.63
Less: Closing Stock 1,874.12 1,443.00
Total 18,166.64 16,919.63
Consumption of Raw Material
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Non Alloys Steei {Billet & Ingot) 13,507.43 11,875.67
Alloys Steel (Billet & Ingot} 758.21 1,176.01
Copper Rod/Bar 3,901.00 3,867.95
Total 18,166.64 16,919.63
Note-19.1 Purchase of Trading Goods
___[%inLakhs]
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Purchase of Trading Goods

Total

278.50

278.50




CHAND! STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31 2021

Note-20 Change in Inventories of finished goods, stock In trade and work -in-progress:

{X in Lakhs|
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening stock (Finished Goods) 311.06 648.77
Closing stock (Finished Goods) 1,176.44 311.06
(865.38) 337.71
Opening stock (Scrap) 255.62 115.09
Closing stock (Scrap) 93.56 255.62
162.06 (140.53)
Total {703.32) 187.18
Note-21 Employee beneflt expense
___[%in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Salaries, Bonus & Allowances 439.01 417.53
Contribution to Provident and other funds 27.52 20.01
Staff welfare expenses 24.63 4.41
Directors remuneration 26.31 2087
Total 517.47 471.82
Post Retrirement Employee Benefits : Refer Note - 26
Note-22 Finance cost
% in Lakhs}
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Interest expenses :

On Others 491.29 633.73
Finance charges 43.16 18.66
Total 534.45 652.39
Note-23 Depreciation and amortisation expense '
{X in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Depreciation of tangible assets 225.33 200.00
Total 225.33 200.00




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31 2021

Note-24 Other expenses

|% in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Consumption of Stores and Spares 704.44 653.49
Labour Charges 415.36 392.31
Power and Fuel 748.48 682,94
Repairs and Maintenance:
- Plant and Machinery 36.38 35.50
- Buildings 8.13 9.68
- Others 17.80 2240
Freight and Transportation 412.49 384.13
Rent and Hire 76.35 38.86
Discount Allowed 0.14 2.86
Rates and Taxes 4.45 4.03
Insurance 1.80 3.81
Advertisernent 0.37 1.08
Brokerage and Commission 238.72 46.15
Travelling and Conveyance 42.22 75.46
Printing & Statlonery 0.0% 1.04
Telephone and Postage 3.28 3.61
Legal and Professionai Charges 409.74 796.84
Allawance on Doubtful Debts - 1.28
Loss on Foselgn Exchange Fluctions (net) 5.90 -
Auditors' remuneration
- Audit Fees 0.45 0.45
- Tax Audit Fees 0.20 0.15
- in Other Capacity for certificates and others 0.10 0.35
SR Expenses 19.25 -
Charity and Donations 6.18 11.51
Security and Service Charges 59.47 46.58
Prior Period Expenses 0.34 0.92
Sundry Balance Written off 175.83 749.32
Miscellanzous Expenses 228.04 265.15
Total 3,618.20 4,231.36
Note- 24.1 Expenditure on Corporate Sacial Responsibility {CSR) activities
[Xin Lakhs]
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{a} Gross amount required to be spent by the Compnay During the year 18.10 -
{b} Amount Spent during the year
i} On purpose - in cash 18.25 -
{1} The various heads under the CSR expenditure were incurred in cash in detailed as follows :
Relevant Clause of L - Year ended Year ended
Scheduel VIi to the Act Descriptin of CSR activities 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Clause - x Rural Development projects * 19.25 -
* Contribution to related trust (Ram Kumar Jajodia Trust) amounting to ¥ 19.25 lakh {31 Mar 2020 % Nil}
Note-25 Tax expenses
(% in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

{1} Current tax

Current tax expense

income tax relating to previous year
Less: MAT Entitlement

Total

(2) Deferred tax
Total

173.42 288,78

- 4.68
173.42 293.46
{12.90) (7.99)
(12.90| [7.99)




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

Note- 26
POST RETIREMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The disclosers required under IND As 19 on "Employee Benefits”, are given below :

Defined Contribution Plan
Contrlbutionsw te Defined Contribution Plans, recognized for the year {included In Statement of Profit & Loss ) as under :

{ In Lakhs)

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

5.19
1171

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund
Employer's Contribution to Pensicn Scheme

Gratuity

5.72
12.42

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is entitled to gratuity on

terms not less favourable than the provisions of Fayment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The scheme is funded with an insurance company in the form

of a qualifying insurance policy. The disciosures required under Indian Accounting Standard 19 'Employee 8enefits’ are given below:

{a) Expenses recoginzed in statement of Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March 2021,

{% in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current Service Cost £.10 5.20
Interest Cost on benefit obligation 0.91 0.45
Total Expenses / {Income) ' 7.01 5.65
(b) Other Comprehensive Income {OCI) for the year ended 31st March 2021.
___[%in Lakhs|
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Actuarial {galn}/Loss due to DBO Experiance {0.40) {0.89)
Actuarial {gain)/Loss due to DBO assumption changes {087 3.12
Return on plan asset (greater)/less than discount rate 0.04 0.03
acturial {gains)/losses recognized in OC [1.23] 2.26
{C]) Defined Benifit cost for the year ended 31st March 2021
{% in Lakhs]
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Service Cost 6.10 5.20
Net Interest on net defined benifit liability/(asset) 0.91 0.45
Acturlal{gains}/Losses recognized in OC] {1.23) 2.26
Defined Banifit Cost 5.78 7.91




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

(d) Net Assets / {Lahility) recognized In Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021

{% In Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Defined Benifit Obligation{DBO) {44.38) {40.48)
Fair value of plan assets (FVA) 24.96 26.58
Net defined benifit asset/(Liability) [19.42) {13.89|
{e] Reconciliation of Net Balance Sheet Position as at 31st March 2021
{% in Lakhs}
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Net defined benifit asset/{Liability) at end of prlor Pariod 13.89 5.98
Service Cost 6.10 5.20
Net interest on net define benlfit {liability)/ asset 091 0.45
Amount recognised in 0C) (1.23) 2.26
Employer Contribution {0.25) -
Net defined benifit asset/{Liability} at the current Period 19.42 13.89
{f} Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation during the year ended 31st March 2021
[Xin Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Fresent Value of Defined Benifit Obligation at the begining of the year 40.48 30.72
Current Service Cost 6.10 5.20
Interest Cost 2.56 233
Acturial Loss / {gain) experiance {0.40} {(0.89)
Acturial Loss / (gain) Finalancial assumptlon {0.87) 3.12
Benefit Payments (3.45) -
Present Value of Defined Benefits Obligation at the end of the year 44,38 40.48
{g) Change In the Fair Value of Plan Assets during the year ended 31st March 2021
___|%inLakhs)
Year ended Year ended
33 March 2021 31 March 2020
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the bening of the year 26.59 24.74
Interest income on plan asset 1.6e4 1.88
Employer Contribution 0.25 -
Return on plan assets greater/{iesser) than discount rate {0.04) {0.17)
Benifits Paid (3.49) -
Fair Value of Plant Assets at the end of the year 24.95 26.45
(k) The ma)or categorles of plan assets as percentage of the fair value of the total plan assets
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Ilavestment with the insurer 100% 100%




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

{i] The principal assurmptions used In detemining gratulty and leave obligations for the Company's plans are shown below :

Year ended Year epded
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Discount Rate 6.80% 6.60%
Expected Rate of relurs on assets 6.80% 6.60%
Rate of increase in salaries 7.00% 7.00%

Indian Assured Indian Assured
Life Mortality Life Mortality

o ) {2006-08) {2006-08)
Martality Table {Modified) Ult. {Modified) Ult.
Note- 27
Unhedged Foreign currency exposures outstanding at the year end are as follows :

...... Asat'March31;2021° | AsatWMarch31,2020
_ : inFC | (®inlakhs) | inkc | (TinLakhs)
Receivables )

- Trade Receivables Uss 1,78,958.78 130.73 4,31,469.46 325,27
[Total [ 1,78,958.78 130.73| . 4,31,469.46 325.27
Payables .

- Advance from customers uss - - - -
’TT)taI | . . - R
Hedged Foreign currency exposures outstanding at the year end are as follows :

e o e il S n AsatMarch31,2021 | . Asat March 31,2020

Particulars ~~  |* ForeignC F z — . =

e e R R giena [t S InFC | (Xinlakhs) |  inFC__ | (Xinlokhé)
Receivables .

- Trade Receivables uss 10,54,135.07 720.10 4,37,270.91 329.64

[Total | 10,54,235.07 770.10 | 4,37,270.91 329,64




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note-28 Contingent Liabilities not provided for

{ ¥ int Lakhs)
31 March ES |

Partlc
ulars 2021 March
Sales Tax & Excise Duty mattess under dispute/appaal 42.77 52.75
Bank Guarantees cutstanding 10193 6218

Note-29 Refated Party Transactions

List of Related Partles

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key Managerial Personnel or their rglatives

1ai Balaji Industries Ltd.

Jai Salasar Balafl Industries Pvt. Ltd.
Balaji ispat Udyog - ’

Jai Balaji Jyoti Steels Lid,

Jai Balaji Infotech Pvt. Ltd.

Ram Kurnar Jajodia Trust

List of Key Managerial Parsonnel
Davendra Prasad Jajodia

Susanta Sarkar

Tushar Kantf Sarkar

Seema Chowdhury

Transactions with Related Partles

The following transactions accurred with related parties:

Managing Director
Director
Chief Financial Qfficer
Company Secretory

List of Relatlves of Key Managerial Personnel
Sangeeta Jajodia

Kanchan Jajodia

Stuti Harsh tajodia

Harsh Jajodia

Sahastru Jajodia

Shashi Devi Jajodia

Compensation of key managerial personnel { ¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars D:venddra Susanta T:5h:lr Seema 31 March M 3;
rasa Sarkar A" chowdhury 2021 Mere
Jalodla Sarkar 2020
Short-term employee benefits 21.50 251 4.48 8.50 3729 3361
Post-employment benefits - -
Other long-term benefits - -
Termination benefits -
Total compensation paid to key managerial
personnel 37.29 3361
Other transactions { ¥ in Lakhs)
Relation Purchases Sales Interest Interest Paid Balance| Balance | Salary Rent GR
Racelvad Pavahle | Receivabia | Paid Paid Expenses
£nterprisas ouned or significaniy influenced by Key
Aanagesial Personnel or thelr relatives
. . . 547.90 52.46 10.13 - - -
|
Jai Balaji Indusiries Umited (21.86) (87.00) i | (zoa) ) i _
Jai Salasar Balaji Industries {P) Ltd. 5418| 1567.21 - 2002.20 - - -
{3884.74)| {1488.94) - - - {167.78) -
Balaiji Ispat U i ’ ) ) : ’ ’ ’ )
alaji Ispat Udyog i ) . | (335 ) i i
Jai Balaji Jyoti Steels Ltd, i i K : ) ) i
al Balaji Jyoli Steels Ltd ) ) ) (330.64)| (298.14) i ) 1 )
Jai Bala]i infotech Pvt Limited : . ] ) ] (2?'2%? ) ) ]
Ram Kumar Jajodia Trust ) i ) ‘ ) 19‘25_
Relatives of Key Managerial Persan Co
. - - - - - - - 3,60 -
Sangeeta fajodia
8 ! - - - - - {3.60) -
- - - - - - 6.60
Kanchan lajodia
] - - e NG - -l {6.60) -
. . - AT - - -l 18.00 - -
Stuti Harsh Jajodia f_,/zg.;\ ¢
Harsh jajodia - - I/ & D_) 7 ? - -| 1650 N
: : 1l Sr o/ ) . - . .
Sahastru Jajodia _ l' ), * || 6 . — - _
) _ - % T - - 1200 -
Sha§h| Devi Jajodia : | ;:q%m » e i )




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

Note-30 Earnings per share

¥ in Lakhs}
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

A. Basic earnlngs per share
Net Profit after tax 510.60 881.73
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (% in lakhs) 510.60 881.73
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS { £ in lakhs) 105.36 105.38
Basic EPS ' 4.85 8.37
B. Diluted earnings per share
Prefit attributable to equity shareholders (T in lakhs) 510.60 §81.73
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS (Z in lakhs) 105.36 105.36
Diluted EPS ' 4.85 8.37

Basic EPS amounts are ¢alculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the adjusted profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity
shares outstanding during the vear plus the welghted average number of aquity shaces that would be issued on cenversion of all the dilutive’
potential Eguity shares into equity shares. -

Nate- 31 Confirmation of Debtors, Creditors and Dues of Small Scale Units

tn the absence of balance confirmation from Sundry Debtors, Creditors, Loans, Advances and Security Deposits which are on selective basis, the
balances appearing in the books of accounts have been taken as correct.

Note- 32 Value of Indlgenous Material Consumed

|# In Lakhs)
Partlcuiars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Raw Material 16,166.64 16,919.63
Stores and Spares 704.44 653.49

Note- 33 Segment Reporting

The company is predominantly engaged in production and sale of Iron & Steel and other connected products, which are subject to simifer risks
and returns. Moreover, there is no separate geographical segment. Hence, segment reporting Is not applicable as prescribed by Ind AS-108.

Note- 34 Earnings in forelgn currency transactions for the vear

¥ 1n Lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
9,103.14 9,156.70

Exports at FOB Value




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

Note- 35 Fair Value Measurements

{Z in Lakhs}
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cast
Financial Assets
Investment - - - - - -
Trade Receivables - - 3,654.07 - - 1,936.52
Security Deposits - - 168.33 - - 136.87
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 85.72 - - 1,351.88
Other Bank Balances - - 419.44 - - i23.86
Loans to Related Party - - 23.00 - - 29.50
Loans to Other - - - - - -
Advances - - 78.05 - - 98.05
Total Financial Assets - 4,429.61 - - 3,676.67
Financial Liabilities
sorrowings - 52458 - - 5,220.16
Trade Payables - - 3732.54 - . 1,494.32
Capital Creditors - - 35.64 - - 36.87
Advance from Related party - - - - - -
Due to employees - - 64.8 - - 45,58
Total Financial Liabilites - - 9,078.78 . - 6,796.94
1} Fair Value Hiecarchy
Financial Asset & Liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
managements at 31st March 2021
Financial Assets
Financial investment at FYTPL -
Financial Investment at FVTOU
Total - - - -
Financial Liabilities - - - -
Total - - - -

Leve!l 1: tevel 1 hlerarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded konds

and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is

valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2: The fair valve of financial instrurments that are not traded in an active market {for example, traded bonds, overthe- counter

derivatives) is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-

specific estimates. if all significant inputs required to fair velue an instrument are observable, the instrument is included In feve! 2,

Level 3: If one or mare of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case

for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.

The group's policy is 1o recognise transfers into and transfers out of falr value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

Note- 36 Financial risk management

The company's acthvities expose It to market risk, liquidity risk and cradit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial
performance of the company, derivative financial Instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts, forelgn currency option contracts are
entered to hedge certain foreign currency risk exposures and interest rate swaps to hedge variable interest rate exposures, Derivatives are ysed
exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative Instruments, This note explains the sources of risk which the entity Is exposed
to and how the entity manages the risk and the impact of hedge accounting in the financial statements

Risk . Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Cash and cash equivalents, trade

receivables, -derivative financial Aging analysis Diversification of bank

Credit risk ) . Credit Ratings deposits, credit limits
instruments,  financial  assets g and letters of credit
measured at amortised cost.

Avafiability of
[li h flow
Liquidity risk - : Borrowings and other lisbilities Rolling cas committed credit lines
forecasts . .
and borrowing facilities
Future comamercial transactions Forward foreign
Cash fiow

Recognised financial assets and - exchange contracts,
g forecasting,

liabilities not denominated in Sensitivity analysis Forgign currency
. 14) 1 .

fndian rupee {INR} ¥ options

Market risk — foreign exchange

Long-term borrowings at variable,

Sensitivity analysls |Interest rate swaps
rates

Market risk — interest rate

Market risk — security prices Investments in equity securities Sensitivity anzalysis |Portfollo diversification

The company’s risk management is carrled out by a central treasury department [company treasury) under palicies approved by the board of
directors. company treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-'operation with the company’s operating units. The board
provides writien principles for overall risk management, as well as policles covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk,

credit risk, use of derivative financlal instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

{A) Credit risk .
Credit risk arises from cash and cash eguivalents, investments carried at amortised cost and deposits with banks and financlal institutions, as well
as credit exposures to wholesale customers including outstanding receivables,

{I) Credit risk managerent

Credit risk is managed on a company basis. For banks and financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted. For other financial
assets, the company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system. The finance function consists of a separate team
who assess and maintain an internal credit rating system. Internal credit rating is performed on a company basis for each class of financial
Instruments with different characteristics. Value Ind AS Limited assigns the following credit ratings to each ¢lass of financial assets based on the
assumptions, inputs and factors specific (o the class of financial assets. '

VL 1 : High-quality assets, negligible credit risk

VL 2 : Quaiity assets, low credit risk

VL 3 : Standard assets, moderate credit risk .
VL 4 : Substandard assets, relatively high credit risk
VL S @ Low quality assets, very high credit risk

VL & : Doubtful assets, credit-impaired




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

The company considers the prabahility of default upon inftisl recognition of asset and whether there has been a signiflcant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting pericd. To assess whether there is a significant Increase in credit risk the company compares the
risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information, especially the following indicators are incorporated:

i} Internal credit rating
ii} external credit rating {as far as available)
i) actual or expected significant adverse changes In business, financial or economic conditions that are expectad to cause a significant change to

the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

iv} actual or expected signiflcant changes in the operating results of the borrower

v) significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same borrower

vi) significant changes In the value of the collatera! supporting the cbligation or in the quality of third-party guarantees or credit enhancements

vii) Significant changes In the expected performance and behaviour of the borrower, Incfuding changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
company and changes in the operating results of the borrower.

Macroeconomic Information {such as regulatory changes, market interest rate or growth rates} is incorporated as part of the internal rating

madel.
In general, it is presurmed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payments are more than 30 days past due.

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 60 days of when they fall due. This definition of

default is determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macre-economic factors.

(B) Liguidity risk

Prudent liguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to ciose out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of

the underlying businesses, company treasury maintains flexibitity in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

Management monltors rolling forecasts of the company’s liquidity position {comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below) and cash and
cash equivaleats on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out at local level in the operating companies of the company In
accordance with practice and limits set by the company. These limits vary by location to take into account the liguidity of the market in which the
entity operates. In addition, the company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows In major currencies and considering the
level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external re'gulatur\; requirements and
maintaining debt financine olans.

[) Financing arrangements

The company had not access to the undrawn borrowing facilities during the reporting period:

{il) Maturities of finandal liabilities

The tables below analyse the company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity companyings based on their contractual maturities for;
1} all non-derivative financial Hiabilities, and

ii) net and gross settled derivative financlal instruments for which the contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of

the cash flows.
The amounts disclosed In the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. 8alances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as

the impact of discounting is not significant.




CHANDI STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

Note- 37 Capital management

(2] Risk management

For the purpose of the company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, redeemable non-convertible preference
shares, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company. The primary objective of the
company's canital management is to maximise the sharsholder value.

The company’s objectives when managing capital are to
i) safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide raturns for shareholders and benefits for

other stzkeholders, and .
i} Malntain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The company’s policy Is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. The management seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowlng and the advantages and security afforded by sound capital position.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell ssets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the Industry, the company monitors capltal on the basis of the following gearing ratia:

Net debt [total borrawlngs net of cash and cash equivalents)
Total ‘equity’ (as shown In the balance sheet, Including nan-controlling interests}

{T in Lakhs)

31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Total Borrowings 5,245.80 5.145.78
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 505.16 1,475.74
Adjusted net debt . 4,740.64 3,670.04
Total equity 3,590.31 3,078.79
Net debt to equity ratlo 132.04 119.20

Net Finance Cost to EBITDA

Finance Cost [as shown In the balance sheet)
Earnings befare intereast, tax, depreciation and amartization

31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Finance Cost 534.45 124.17

EBITDA 1,430.90 378.1%

Net Flnance Cost to EBITDA ratio 37.35 32.83

As per Report of even dateco For and on behalf of the Board
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